














NLB BANKA d.d., SARAJEVO
Notes to Financial Statements - December 31, 2022

(All amounts are given in thousand BAM unless otherwise stated)
3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.11. Taxation

Taxes are calculated in accordance with the regulations of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina and
Bréko District. The starting point in determining the income tax base is the business result reported in the
income statement. Differences between the profit presented in the accounting records and the taxable profit
in the tax balance occur due to corrections prescribed by the Corporate Income Tax Act and the
accompanying Rulebook, according to which certain expenses shown in the accounting records, although
actually incurred, from the aspect of the income tax regulations represent non-deductible expenses, which
as such increase the tax base.

Accordingly, individual expenses, depending on the type, can be treated in the tax balance:

e as non-deductible expenses in their full amount (which increase the corporate income tax base as a
whole), or

e as non-deductible expenses in the prescribed percentage (which increase the corporate income tax
base only in the non-deductible part).

In addition, certain expenses may be tax deductible permanently (as permanent tax differences that are
reflected in the income tax base only once, i.e., only for that tax period), while other expenses may be tax
deductible with a certain time lag (as temporary tax differences, which are reflected based on income tax
not only in one but in several accounting and tax periods).

Temporary tax differences occur:

e in cases where once unrecognized items (i.e. items that increased taxable profit in one period) will
subsequently be treated as tax deductible items, for which taxable profit may be reduced in some
future period

e  in cases where pre-tax items (i.e., items used to reduce taxable profit in one period) will subsequently
be treated as non-tax deductible, and these amounts will have to be increased by taxable profit in some
future period.

In the first case, when it comes to temporary tax differences, such items will in future periods result in

deferred tax assets and in the second case deferred tax liabilities.

The current regulations also provide for tax relief as tax incentives, for example through the tax balance,
the recognition of double the amount of gross salary for newly hired employees, subject to certain
conditions.

The income tax rate is 10%.

When it comes to indirect taxes, the Bank is in the VAT system. Given the specificity of the services provided
by the Bank, most of such services are exempt from VAT.

There is an obligation to calculate VAT for services that are subject to this obligation and the Bank acts
accordingly.

The Bank has no right to deduct input VAT and input VAT is recorded on the expense on which the related
service is recorded.

The VAT rate is 17%.

3.12. Earnings per share

The Bank discloses basic earnings per share. Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit
or loss of the current period attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares for the period.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.13. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with a maturity
of less than 3 months, including cash and non-restricted balances with the Central Bank as well as other
eligible securities and loans and advances to banks.

3.14. Due from other banks

Amounts due from other banks encompass placements with other banks that become due for collection
on a fixed date.

3.15. Financial Assets

Financial assets originate from lending operations, foreign exchange related operations, deposits, and
payments operations; they are also used in securities trading, the purchase and collection of receivables,
and they are the result of other banking services. Financial assets are recognized as of the date of
settlement (settlement date) determined for that financial asset.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
decrease in financial instruments. An incremental cost is incurred upon rendering a transaction.
Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents (including employees acting as selling
agents), advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Transaction costs do not include debt premiums or discounts, financing costs
or internal administrative or holding costs.

Amortized cost (AC) is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognized at initial
recognition less any principal repayments increased by accrued interest, or the amount at which the
financial instrument was recognized less any write-down for incurred impairment losses. Accrued
interest includes amortization of transaction costs deferred at initial recognition and amortization of all
premiums or discounts up to the maturity date by applying the effective interest rate. Accrued interest
income and accrued interest expense, including both accrued coupon and amortized discounts or
premiums (including fees deferred at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are included
in the carrying values in the statement of financial position (balance sheet).

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculation of the amortized cost of a financial
asset or financial liability, and the allocation of interest income or interest expenditures over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, if appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The effective interest rate discounts cash
flows of variable interest instruments until the next interest re-pricing date, except for the premium or
discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate specified in the instrument, or other
variables that are not reset to market rates. Such premiums or discounts are amortized over the entire
expected life of the instrument. The present value calculation includes all fees paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.15. Financial Assets (continued)
Measurement of financial assets

According to IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments, financial assets are measured at:

e  Amortized cost,

e  Fair value, with valuation effects recognized in other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or
e Fair value, with valuation effects recognized in profit or loss (FVPL).

Criteria that determine classification and valuation of financial assets are:
¢  business model for financial asset management,
e  characteristics of financial instrument’s contractual cash flows.

The Bank adopts the business model that reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its

business objectives. Business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at their

level of aggregated portfolios considering following:

e  how the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and
reported to the entity's key management personnel

e the risks that affect the performance of the business model and the way those risks are managed

e how key management personnel is compensated (sales — collection of fair value or collection of
contractual cash flows)

o the expected frequency, value and timing of sales.

The decision on selection of business model is based on reasonably expected events without 'stress case’
scenarios. If the cash flows are different from the expectations, the Bank does not change the
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model but incorporates such
information when assessing business model for new financial assets. According to the Bank's business
model, loans to customers and deposits are classified in business model which has purposes of collecting
contractual cash flow. Loans to customers and deposits are valued at amortized cost, except in cases
when they don’t pass SPPI test.

Conditions for classification of debt instruments in banking book are provided in Policy for operating
with financial instruments.

If the contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI), then debt
instruments are valued at their paid value or at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI),
depending on the business model.

In case the contractual cash flows do not satisfy SPPI criteria, then financial assets are valued at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL).

For SSPI test, the principal represents fair value of the financial asset at the moment of initial recognition,
and interest compensation for:

«  Time value of money

«  Credit risk, in relation to unpaid principal at a given moment

e Interest rate

« Compensation for other risks (liquidity) and expenses.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.15. Financial Assets (continued)

For SPPI the Bank uses Manual for Performance of SPPI Test in Accordance with IFRS g for Debt
Financial Assets. To confirm correctness of SPPI test performance, which was performed by operating
sector, the secondary controls are performed as defined by the Manual for SPPI test performance.

Financial assets included in business model whose goal is not to collect contractual cash flows or collect
contractual cash flows and sell, are valued at fair value through profit or loss and are not subject of SPPI
test (e.g. Financial assets available for sale).

Equity financial instruments and instruments which are combination of debt and equity are not subject
to SPPI test and are valued at fair value.

Financial assets valued at amortized cost

Financial assets are valued at amortized cost if the following conditions are met:

- Business model objective is to collect contractual cash flows

- In accordance with contractual terms, cash flows occur on specified date that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets valued at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value increased for direct
transaction cost, and subsequently are valued at amortized cost. Interests and exchange differences are
recognized directly in profit or loss. Interests are calculated using effective interest rate which includes
accrual of direct transaction costs, premiums and discounts which are accrued during the lifetime of
financial asset.

Loans and deposits are recognized in the off-balance record at the date of contract, and in balance sheet
at the date of contract realization.

Bank places short-term, long-term, frame agreements and commission loans (in own name, for someone
else’s account) to corporate and retail clients according to business policy of the Bank.

Loans are subsequently recognized in amount of unpaid principal, increased by accrued interests and
fees and decreased by impairment.

Loans and placements in foreign currency are recalculated in domicile currency in general ledger,
Convertible Mark, using average rate of Central Bank BiH.
Exchange differences are daily calculated and recognized in profit or loss as revenue or expense.

Financial assets valued at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Debt instruments within financial assets are valued at fair value through other comprehensive income

when both of the following conditions are met:

- The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets

- atspecified dates, in accordance with the contractual terms, cash flows occur and the represent solely
payment of principal and interest of the financial asset (meet the SPPI test)

53



NLB BANKA d.d., SARAJEVO
Notes to Financial Statements - December 31, 2022

(All amounts are given in thousand BAM unless otherwise stated)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.15. Financial Assets (continued)

Equity instruments which are not held for trading, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, if management at initial recognition makes a decision that effects of valuation
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets classified in group of financial assets valued at fair value through other comprehensive
income, initially and subsequently are measured at fair value. Direct expenses occurred at the moment
of purchase are added to the fair value. Change of fair value as a result of valuation is recorded in other
comprehensive income. At the moment of derecognition (e.g. sales)) the total accumulated amount in
other comprehensive income for debt financial instruments is transferred to profit or loss statement, and
for equity instruments to retained earnings.

Interests and exchange differences for debt financial instruments are recognized directly in profit or loss.
Interests are calculated using effective interest rate which involves accrual of direct transaction costs,
premiums and discounts which are accrued during the lifetime of financial asset.

For debt securities the impairment is calculated.
For equity securities impairment is not calculated. Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets valued at fair value through praofit or loss statement (FVPL)

In this group of financial assets are:

- Financial assets held for trading,

- Financial assets which are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (which do
not pass SPPI test and equity securities for which management didn't decide to recognize effects
of valuation through other comprehensive income).

- Financial assets classified to be measured at fair value through profit or loss in case that this
classification significantly decrease or alleviate imbalance which would have occurred due to
different valuation of financial assets or liabilities.

Financial assets which are valued at fair value through profit or loss are valued at fair value at the moment
of recognition and subsequently, and effects of valuation are recognized in profit or loss.

Fee for approval of loans to customers and deposits is recognized as current year income and it is not
accrued through the period.

Costs occurred during the purchase of debt securities are recognized in profit or loss as fee expense.
Financial assets are valued at fair value on a monthly basis and individually for each financial asset.

Reclasstfication of financial assets

The Bank can reclassify financial assets when business model for financial assets management is
changed. Those changes are very rare and occur based on internal or external factors, they must be
significant for business and reasons of change must be proven. Changes of business model can occur in
case when Bank starts or ceases to perform activities significant for its business, e.g., if Banks buy or sell
business segment.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.15. Financial Assets (continued)

Reclassification is done prospectively, as of the day of reclassification onwards, where the day of
reclassification is the first day of reporting period, which follows change of business model (in case of
quarterly reporting, that is first day of quarter after change).

In case the Bank reclassify financial assets from category which is measured at amortized cost into
category which is measured at fair value through profit or loss, fair value is measured at the day of
reclassification. Possible gain or loss which occurs as difference between previously repaid value and fair
value is recognized in profit or loss. .

If the Bank reclassifies financial assets from the category measured at fair value through profit or loss
into a category measured at amortized cost, the fair value of that financial asset at the date of
reclassification becomes their new gross carrying value.

If the Bank reclassifies financial assets from a category measured at amortized cost into a category
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, fair value is calculated at the date of
reclassification. Possible gain or loss that arises as the difference between the previous repaid value and
fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income. The effective interest rate and the measurement
of expected credit losses are not changed.

If the Bank reclassifies financial assets from a category measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income into the category measured at amortized cost, the reclassification is carried out
at fair value oat the date of reclassification. Cumulative gains or losses from other comprehensive income
are removed from equity and adjust the fair value of financial assets at the date of reclassification.
Consequently, financial assets at the date of reclassification are measured as if they were always
measured at amortized cost. The effective interest rate and the measurement of expected credit losses
are not changed.

If the Bank reclassifies financial assets from a category measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income into the category measured at fair value through profit or loss, the financial assets
are further measured at fair value. Cumulative gains or losses from other comprehensive income are
transferred from other comprehensive income to the profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the
date of reclassification.

Change of contracted cash flows during the lifetime of the financial asset

Modified financial assets are those for which the contractual terms are changed during the lifetime. The
contractual terms are changed if the Bank and the borrower conclude a contract for the replacement
(payment) of the old financial asset (before the original maturity) with a new financial asset (new
contract), but in a way that the bank and the borrower define new contractual terms (annex to the
contract). The contract terms are changed as follows:

- As a renewal or extension of the loan maturity, where this is possible for clients that have no financial

difficulties and
- As a restructuring of financial assets for clients with financial difficulties.

Renewal or extension of the period of loan

The Bank recognizes a new financial asset when renewing or extending the loan repayment term. The
SPPI test is performed at the date of initial recognition of the new financial asset.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.15. Financial Assets (continued)

3.15.1. Restructured financial assets

Restructuring of a loan is carried out in accordance with the Bank's business policy. The aim of the loan
restructuring is to provide the borrower with an adequate repayment in accordance with his capabilities
and to provide the Bank with more efficient collection of receivables. In this sense, the restructuring
includes a proposal to modify the contractual terms agreed when approving the loan. Restructuring is
carried out according to the Bank's decision in cases where it is estimated that the client has a problem
with the repayment of the loan and when it is estimated that according to the original contract the loan
will not be repaid within the agreed deadline. '

Possible types of restructuring that are performed individually or in combination are the following:

« prolongation of principal repayment and/or interest or postponing the repayment of
principal and/or interest,

= reduction of interest rate and/or other costs,

« reduction of the number of receivables (principal and/or interest) as a result of the agreed
debt write off,

« taking over debtor's receivables from a third party, in the name of partial and full repayment
of the loan,

« replacement of the existing loan with a new loan,

» other similar benefits, which facilitate the financial position of the debtor.

If the restructuring contract involves significant changes in cash flows, then a new financial asset is
recognized and the existing one is derecognized. For the new asset, it is necessary to perform the SPPI
test on the day of recognition and classify it into a particular group depending on the SPPI test result.
The effects arising from the change in the previously contracted characteristics (the difference between
the repayment value of previously contracted cash flows and new contracted cash flows) are
recalculated through the impairment.

A newly recognized asset is treated as a POCI financial asset at the initial recognition.

In accordance with Measures and procedures for placement approval, a restructured asset is classified
into the credit rating group C or below.

If the restructuring contract does not result in significant changes in the characteristics of cash flows, the
effects are recognized as a gain or loss on the modified financial assets. The effects of the modification
are calculated as the difference between the repayable gross carrying value of the asset and the new
contracted cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

In the case of a financial asset item that represents a debt financial instrument (securities and loans), the
Bank is required to determine whether a modification is significant, i.e. whether the difference between
the present value of the remaining cash flows discounted using the original effective interest rate and the
present value of the modified cash flow flows discounted using the original effective interest rate of more
than 10%, according to local regulations, for individuals and legal entities.

If the modification is significant, the bank derecognizes the original item of financial assets and begins
to recognize the new item.

If the modification is not significant, the bank continues to recognize the financial asset. The SPPI test is
performed at the recognition day of the originally contracted financial asset. The starting point for
assessing whether the credit risk of the financial asset in relation to the initial recognition has
significantly changed is the date of recognition of the initiated contractual financial asset.

If the Bank approaches the restructuring of receivables by taking over other assets (tangible assets,
securities, etc.), including investments in borrowers' equity acquired through conversion of receivables
from debtors, the acquired assets are recognized in the balance sheet at fair value. The difference between
the fair value of the acquired asset and the carrying amount of receivables is recognized in the profit or
loss as a decrease/release of the impairment of approved loans and receivables.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.15. Financial Assets (continued)

3.15.1. Restructured financial assets (continued)

The decision on temporary measures applied by the bank to mitigate the negative economic
consequences caused by the viral disease “COVID-19”" stipulates that modifications of loan liabilities
that were allocated to credit risk level 1 or 2 on the day of modification, the Bank designates in its
information system as modifications caused by current needs of the debtor, and modifications of
exposures that are allocated to credit risk level 3 on the day of modification, the Bank designates in its
information system as restructured exposures.

3.16. Property and equipment

Property and equipment items are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation
is calculated on a straight-line basis to write down the cost of such assets to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives. Land and assets in construction are not depreciated. Applied depreciation
rates are set for 2022 and 2021 as follows:

2022 2021
Buildings 2% 2%
Leasehold improvements 20% 20%
Computer equipment 14.3-50% 14.3-50%
Vehicles 15% 15%
Furniture and other office equipment 7-15% 7-15%

The period and amortization method is reviewed once a year at the end of each business year. When the
expected useful life significantly differs from the previous estimation, the corresponding change in the
period of depreciation is required. This represents the change in accounting estimate and such change
should be adequately accounted for in the financial statements.

For tangible assets the Bank periodically estimates whether there are indicators of impairment. Within
such estimation process the Bank considers several indicators from internal and external sources. When
the Bank finds that there are indicators of impairment in tangible assets, then the Bank initiates the
process of estimation of recoverable value. Recoverable value is the value in use or the fair value reduced
by cost of sale, whichever is higher.

During 2022, the Bank adjusted the fair value of real estate and recognized impairment in the value of
one business premises in which it conducts business activities, in a total net value of BAM 54 thousand.

Overview of property and equipment and right of use assets in 2022 and 2021 is presented in Note 18.

Leasehold improvements Leasehold improvements are capitalized and amortized by a stralght -line
method, during their useful life, or during the lease period depending on what is shorter.

3.16.1 Leases

Leases accounting is in accordance with IFRS 16 Lease. A contract is a lease contract if it transfers the
right to control the use of a particular asset for a specified period in exchange for a consideration.

Bank as a lessee

At the inception of the lease, the Bank recognizes an asset that represents a right to use (i.e., a right-of-
use asset) and a liability under the lease. This applies to all leases except short-term and low-value leases.
Short-term leases are defined as those that have a maximum lease term of 12 months at the
commencement date of the lease, with no option to purchase fixed assets. Leases of property, plant, and
equipment with a value less than or equal to EUR 5 thousand are defined as low-value leases. In these
cases, rents are treated as a cost based on the straight-line method throughout the lease term.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.16.1 Leases (continued)

The right to use the assets

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Bank measures the right to use the asset at cost less
accumulated depreciation, impairment losses and adjusted for each re-measurement of the lease
liability. The value of the asset, which constitutes the right to use, includes the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, payment of rent made on or before the lease date, less rental incentives
received, initial direct costs of tenants and an estimate of costs incurred by the lessee in dismantling or
removing the leased property, renovating the location where it is located or returning the leased property
to the condition required by the lease terms. After the date of commencement of the lease, the Bank
measures the asset that represents the right of use using a cost model and depreciates it on a straight-
line basis over the estimated lease term. It also separately recognizes interest on lease obligations. The
right to use the asset is presented in the statement of financial position in the line Property, equipment
and assets with the right to use.

Lease liabilities

On the commencement date of the lease, the Bank measures the lease liability at the present value of the
rent, which has not yet been paid at that date. Rents include fixed rents, variable rents, amounts expected
to be paid by the lessee under the residual value guarantee, executing the purchase option price, if it is
fairly certain that the lessee will exercise this option and paying a penalty for termination of the lease, if
the lease duration indicates that the lessee will take the opportunity to cancel the lease.

After the commencement date of the lease, the lessee should measure the lease liability so that:

- increases carrying values to take into account interest on the lease liability,

- decreases carrying values to take into account rentals paid; and

- re-measures carrying values to take account of any changes in used assumptions or contractual
characteristics of the lease,

- lease liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position under the line “Other financial
liabilities™.

Bank as a lessor

In 2021, the Bank leased a smaller part of the main building in Tuzla, for 5 years, with the possibility of
extending the lease. The amount of lease income is expressed within the position other revenues in the
Statement of Total Income.

3.17. Intangible assets

(a) Licences

Acquired licenses for computer software are measured at historical cost.

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of licenses over their
estimated useful lives.

(b) Computer software
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an
expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the Bank are recognized as intangible assets insofar as they are expected
to generate economic benefits that exceed costs within the time period beyond one year. Direct costs
include the costs of the software development team that has developed the software and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.17. Intangible assets (continued)

Computer software development costs recognized as assets are amortized over their estimated useful
lives (5 years).

An overview of the intangible assets in 2022 and 2021 is presented in the Note 19.
3.18. Repossessed financial and nonfinancial assets

Repossessed assets represent financial and non-financial assets acquired by the Bank through the
settlement of overdue loans. These assets are initially recognized at fair value when acquired (and they
are recorded in other assets, other financial assets or inventories within other assets, depending on their
nature and the Bank's intention in respect of recovery of these assets), and are subsequently re-measured
and accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies for these categories of assets.

Assets repossessed for overdue loans classified for further sale are held under IFRS 5 if they are non-
current assets (mostly real estate), which is available for immediate sale and if the sale in the next 12
months is probable; otherwise, it is classified in accordance with IAS 2.

In accordance with the FBA Decision on minimum standards for credit risk management and the
classification of bank’s assets, the Bank applies the concept of fair value, or realistic value when assessing
repossessed assets received in exchange for full or partial debt repayment. For tangible assets for which
a stable and active market exists, the fair value represents a value equal to the market value for such
assets.

In the absence of such a market, the fair value has to be established by an independent, formal and
professional assessment. When it is not possible to reliably determine the fair value, i.e. uncontested and
stable value of the acquired tangible assets, for bookkeeping purposes the Bank will apply only the
technical value of BAM 1.

Receivables per repossessed assets remain in the balance sheet until sale proceeds are realized or until a
permanent write-off is recorded provided there are no sufficient funds from the sale or other additional
security.

The repossessed tangible assets are classified as risk-bearing assets unless they are sold within one year.

The acquired tangible, which are introduced by the decision into the Bank's operations, are recorded as
other fixed assets and are depreciated.

Assets acquired through collection of receivables, which are leased to third parties, are first recorded as
fixed assets of the Bank and depreciated, and then based on the lease agreements, revenue is generated.

3.19. Liabilities for guarantees

The Bank issues financial guarantees. Financial guarantees represent an irrevocable payment guarantee
in case of a customer not being able to meet its liabilities to a third party, and they carry the same credit
risk as loans. Financial guarantees are initially recognized at their fair value, which is usually proved by
the amount of received fees. This amount is amortized on a straight-line basis over the commitment
period.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.20. Deposits of clients, banks, and other deposits

At initial recognition, received deposits are valued in accordance with corresponding documents which
support the initial receipt of funds. For a vista deposits and deposits without a defined maturity, fair
value is the amount payable on the reporting date. Estimated fair value of deposits with a fixed maturity
is based on cash flows discounted using the currently offered interest rates on deposits with a similar
remaining maturity.

3.21. Liabilities on received loans, subordinated debts and other borrowings

Liabilities on borrowed loans, subordinated debts and other borrowings are initially recognized at the
contractual amount, which represents the amount received. These financial liabilities are subsequently
recognized at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, and the transaction costs occurred
are recognized in the profit or loss of the current period.

3.22. Impairment of financial assets and off-balance sheet contingent liabilities
3.22.1 Impairment of financial assets and off-balance sheet contingent liabilities — IFRS 9

The model of expected credit losses includes not only credit losses occurred but also losses expected to
occur in the future. Allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) is required for all loans and other debt
financial assets, except financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss, together with loan
liabilities and financial guarantee contracts.

Allowance is based on expected credit losses related to probability of default (PD) in the upcoming 12
months, except in case of a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in case of which
the allowance is based on probability of default during the lifetime (LECL). When deciding whether the
risk of default has significantly increased since the initial recognition, the Bank takes into consideration
reasonable information that is relevant and available without unnecessary costs or efforts. This also
includes quantitative and qualitative information and analyses based on historical information,
experience and estimates of credit experts, also considering future information.

The methodology for the calculation of value adjustments and provisions defines the credit risk level

(Stage) classification criteria, criteria for transfer between stages, the calculation of risk indicators and

model validation. Financial instruments are classified into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, based on the

impairment methodology as described below:

o stage 1— performing portfolio: no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
impairment is recognized based on 12-month period,

e stage 2 — unsatisfactory portfolio: significant increase of credit risk since initial recognition,
impairment is recognized based on lifetime of the assets, and

e stage 3 - poor portfolio: impairment is recognized during the lifetime for this financial asset. The
default definition is aligned with the FBA regulation.

A significant increase in credit risk is assumed:

e  when credit rating significantly deteriorated at the reporting date compared to the credit rating at
initial recognition,

e  when financial assets have material delays exceeding 30 days (maturity days are also included in
the credit risk assessment),

e if the Bank is expecting to approve a postponing to the Borrower or

e ifa credit item is on the "watch list".
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.22. Impairment of financial assets and off-balance sheet contingent liabilities
(continued)

3.22.1 Impairment of financial assets and off-balance sheet contingent liabilities — IFRS 9
(continued)

Expected credit loss (ECL) for stage 1 financial assets is calculated based on 12-month PD (probability of
default) or shorter PD period if the maturity of financial assets is less than 1 year. The 12-month PD
already includes the macroeconomic effect.

Expected loss is calculated only for 12 months in advance, even if the maturity of the item is longer than
one year, but if the exposure time exceeds two years (starts in the first year, it continues in the second
year, but not longer than 12 months), the change in PD must be executed in the second calendar year.

Impairment losses in stage 1 are designed to reflect losses from impairment occurred in the portfolio
which are not yet identified.

LECL for stage 2 financial assets is calculated based on PD during the lifetime (LPD), because their credit
risk is significantly increased since their initial recognition. This calculation is also based on assessment
of future events that considers several economic scenarios to identify probability of losses related to
macroeconomic forecasts.

Financial assets in stage 3 are observed in accordance with Methodology of individual allowance and
provisions, which has not been changed in relation to the previous period. Exposures below the material
threshold have collective impairment using the PD of 100%. The financial instrument will be transferred
out of stage 3 if it no longer meets the criteria of decreased value after the probation period.

Impairment — allowance for credit losses

As stated in Note (3.1) Basis of preparation and statement of compliance, the new regulatory decision
prescribes minimum rates for calculating allowances for credit losses, i.e., if the Bank, in accordance with
its internal methodology, determines higher amounts of allowances for credit losses compared to
amounts calculated by applying the Decision, will apply higher amounts of allowances for credit losses.

The minimum rates of expected credit losses prescribed by the Decision are presented below.

Credit risk level 1
For exposures allocated to Credit Risk Level 1, the Bank determines expected credit losses at least as
follows:
a) forlow-risk exposures referred to in Article 18 Paragraph (2) of this Decision — 0.1% of exposure,
b) for exposures to central governments and central banks outside Bosnia and Herzegovina for
which there is a credit assessment by a recognized external credit rating institution. which is
assigned to credit quality level 3 and 4 in accordance with Article 69 of the Decision on
calculating the bank's capital — 0.1% exposure,
c) for exposures to banks and other financial sector entities for which there is a credit assessment
by a recognized external institution for credit rating assessment, which in accordance with
Article 69 of the Decision on calculating the bank's capital is assigned to credit quality level 1, 2
or 3 - 0.1 % of exposure,
-d) for other exposures — 0.5% of exposure.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.22. Impairment of financial assets and off-balance sheet contingent liabilities
(continued)

3.22.1 Impairment of financial assets and off-balance sheet contingent liabilities — IFRS 9
(continued)

Impairment — allowance for credit losses (continued)

As of June 30, 2022, the Bank applies the minimum rate of expected credit losses for credit risk level 1 -
for point d) other exposures, which amounts to a minimum of 1% of the exposure, in accordance with
Article 23, paragraph (2) of the Decision on credit risk management and determination of expected credit
losses. If the bank, in accordance with its internal methodology, determines the amount of expected
credit losses greater than those resulting from the provision of this article, the higher amount determined
in this way shall be applied.

Credit risk level 2
For exposures allocated to Credit Risk Level 2, the Bank sets expected credit losses to a minimum of 5%
of the exposure.

As of June 30, 2022, the Bank applies the minimum rate of expected credit losses for credit risk level 2
which is a minimum of 8% of exposure, in accordance with Article 24. paragraph (2) Credit risk
management decisions and determining expected credit losses.

If the bank determines in accordance with its internal methodology the amount of expected credit losses
higher than those arising from the provisions of this Article, a higher amount shall apply.

Credit risk level 3
For exposures allocated to Credit Risk Level 3, the Bank determines expected credit losses at least in the
amounts defined in Table 1 or Table 2 below.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.22. Impairment of financial assets and off-balance sheet contingent liabilities
(continued)

3.22.1 Impairment of financial assets and off-balance sheet contingent liabilities — IFRS 9
(continued)

Impairment — allowance for credit losses (continued)

Minimum expected credit loss rates for exposures secured by eligible collateral:

Days overdue Minimum expected credit loss
less than 180 days 15%
181 — 270 days * 25%
271 — 365 days 40%
366 — 730 days 60%
731 — 1460 days 80%
Over 1460 days 100%
Minimum expected credit loss rates for exposures not secured by eligible collateral:
Days overdue Minimum expected credit loss
less than 180 days 15%
181 — 270 days 45%
271 — 365 days 75%
366 — 456 days 85%
Over 456 days 100%

The Bank measures ECL and recognizes allowance for credit losses for each reporting period. The ECL
measurement reflects:
1) anunbiased and probable weighted amount that is determined by assessing the range of possible
outcomes;
2) the time value of money;
3) all reasonable and available information that is available at no unnecessary cost at the end of
each reporting period on past events, current conditions, and forecasts of future conditions.

POCI (Purchased or originated credit impaired asset) asset is an exposure that is determined to be credit
impaired at the moment of initial recognition due to the existence of significant credit risk.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.22. Impairment of financial assets and off-balance sheet contingent liabilities
(continued)

3.22.1 Impairment of financial assets and off-balance sheet contingent liabilities — IFRS 9
(continued)

Impairment — allowance for credit losses (continued)

Collective provisions are calculated by multiplying the EAD (exposure at default) at the end of each
month with corresponding PD and LGD (loss given default). Exposure at default (EAD) is defined as the
sum of balance exposure and off-balance exposure multiplied by CCF (CCF — The credit conversion factor
is the estimate of the proportion of using off-balance in the event of default. It is calculated as the ratio
between the increase of on-balance exposure in total exposure over a period of one year before the default
until default date, and the value of off-balance one year before the default.). The results obtained for each
month are discounted to the present time. For exposures in Stage 1 expected credit loss (ECL) takes only
12-month period into account, while Stage 2 includes all potential losses up to the maturity date.

For the purposes of estimating the LGD parameter, the Bank uses collateral HC (haircut) at each
collateral level and URR (unsecured recovery rate) at the level of each segment of the client. The Bank
includes information regarding the future both in the assessment of significant increase in credit risk
and in the measurement of expected credit loss (ECL). Information being considered include
macroeconomic factors (e.g., unemployment rate, GDP growth, interest rates and housing prices) and
economic forecasts.

Recalculation of all parameters is performed once a year or more frequently, if the macro environment
changes more than it was included in previous forecasts, in that case, all parameters are recalculated in
line with new forecasts.

Derecognition of financial assets

Derecognition of financial assets occur when:

- The contractual right to cash flows is terminated,

— when the transfer of a financial asset is carried out, and the transfer meets the criteria for the
derecognition.

Write-off of loans and receivables

The authority for making decisions on write-off and procedures for writing off non-performing loans are
prescribed by the provisions of the Standard for writing off overdue receivables and transfer to
accounting write-off / off-balance sheet. Write-off of receivables can be accounting write-off and
permanent write-off of receivables.

Accounting write-off is the transfer of a balance sheet exposure to off-balance sheet records, whereby the
Bank reserves the right to take further measures to collect receivables from debtors. The write-off of
exposures in the status of default is applied to receivables according to the criteria:

o  Write-off of the balance sheet exposure two years after the Bank has recorded the expected credit
losses in the amount of 100% of the gross book value of that exposure, and
o That these receivables are fully due, except for exposure based on financial leasing,.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.22. Impairment of financial assets and off-balance sheet contingent liabilities
(continued))

3.22.1 Impairment of financial assets and off-balance sheet contingent liabilities — IFRS 9
(continued)

Write-off of loans and receivables (continued)

Permanent write-off is a write-off of a balance sheet exposure that leads to the cessation of recognition
of all or part of the exposure in the bank's business books (on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet
records). To make a decision on permanent write-off of receivables, if no accounting write-off has been
done before, 100% of the value adjustment must be formed.

Accounting write-off is the transfer of a balance sheet exposure to off-balance sheet records, whereby the
Bank reserves the right to take further measures to collect receivables from debtors.

In accordance with the provisions of the Decision of the Banking Agency of the FBiH on credit risk
management and determination of expected credit losses (Official Gazette of FBiH, no. 44/19 and
37/20), the Bank is obliged to write off exposures in the status of default, two years after that the Bank
has recorded expected credit losses in the amount of 100% of the gross carrying amount of that exposure,
whereby the receivables must be fully due.

The provisions of the aforementioned Decision do not apply to finance lease exposures.
3.23. Other provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when:

- the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,

- itis more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
- the amount of liability can be reliably estimated.

When there are a number of similar liabilities, the probability that an outflow will be required in a
settlement is determined by considering the type of the entire pool of liabilities. A provision is recognized
even if there is a low probability of an outflow with respect to the individual item included in the same
class of liabilities.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expected cash outflows required to settle the liability.

When the outflow of assets is not probable anymore, provisions are cancelled.

3.24. Share capital and reserves

Share capital consists of ordinary and preference shares and it is stated in BAM at nominal value.
Reserves are being formed based on the decision of the Bank’s Assembly on the adoption of an annual
calculation and profit distribution.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.25. Statutory reserves

Statutory reserves have been created in accordance with the Company Law of the FBiH, which requires
10% of the profit for the year to be transferred to this reserve until statutory reserves reach 25% of the
issued share capital. If the statutory reserves do not reach 25% of issued share capital within five business
years, a public limited company is required to increase its transfer to the statutory reserve to 20% of its
annual profit for fifth and subsequent business years until capital reserves reach 25% of issued share
capital. The statutory reserve can be used for covering current and prior year losses. The Bank was
increasing its share capital by redirecting its earnings into statutory reserves, so that as of December 31,
2022, the statutory reserves of the Bank amounted to 140.11% of the share capital.

The Bank’s legal reserves as of December 31, 2022, amounted to BAM 75,106 thousand, out of which BAM
13,401 thousand relate to the legally prescribed 25% of the share capital, and BAM 61,705 thousand relate
to the amount exceeding the statutory reserve.

3.26. Revaluation reserves for financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income and other revaluation reserves

Revaluation reserves for financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
include changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, and
other revaluation reserves, which refer to actuarial gains/losses in accordance with IAS 19, and which arise
from the increase or decrease in the present value of the obligation for the defined benefits of employees,
and due to changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments.

3.27. Off-balance sheet commitments and contingent liabilities

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters credit-related commitments which are recorded in
the off- balance-sheet and primarily comprise of guarantees, letters of credit and unused frame
agreements. Such financial commitments are recorded in the Bank’s balance sheet if and when they
become payable.

3.28. Funds managed for and on behalf of third parties

Assets and revenues from operating activities, where the Bank acts as an agent, including holding or
keeping assets on behalf of individuals, trustees and other institutions, are included in the Bank’s
financial statements, in positions Other liabilities (Note 23d) and Fee and commission income (Note 6a).

3.29. Related party transactions

According to the definition of IAS 24, related parties are:

- parties which directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries control the reporting party
or are being controlled or jointly controlled by the reporting entity, associates over which the Bank
has a significant influence which are neither related parties nor joint investment,

- individuals with direct or indirect voting power in the Bank which gives them significant influence
over the Bank’s operations, or over any other subject which is influenced by a related party in
performing transactions with the Bank,

- members of the key management personnel i.e., individuals with authorizations and responsibility
for planning, managing and controlling the Bank’s operations, including directors and key
management.

While considering transactions with a related party, attention is focused on the substance and basis of
relationship, not just on the legal form.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.30. Impact of the “Covid-19” Pandemic

The outbreak of the “Covid-19” pandemic has triggered a global health crisis and a major impact on the
global economy due to massive locking measures, travel restrictions, trade and other measures. In terms
of macroeconomic and geopolitical risks, the “Covid-19” pandemic has shifted its focus around the world
towards global and national efforts and measures to address this crisis. This has had an impact on
accelerating the mass digitization of financial institutions and moving towards a new operational model
with more remote / network channels for customer service.

From the very beginning, NLB Banka established continuity of operations in accordance with the
Business continuity management policy in the form of business continuity for human resources, office
buildings and information systems in order to protect both clients and employees of the Bank by enabling
key functions and services business.

The risk management approach is tailored to current and expected needs during and after the pandemic
while avoiding activities that could lead to additional negative consequences for the Bank or economic
consequences for the banking system or the economy. Special attention is paid to risk identification and
constant monitoring of risk exposure indicators, especially taking into account the effects on capital
adequacy and liquidity adequacy.

Shortly after the outbreak of the “Covid-19” pandemic, the Banking Agency of FBiH issued a Decision on
temporary measures to mitigate the negative economic consequences caused by the Covid-19 viral
disease, which relate to:
- granting benefits to the bank's clients who are directly or indirectly affected by negative effects,
- special rules related to credit risk management, which the bank applies in case it approves special
measures to the client and
- measures aimed at preserving the bank's capital.

During the risk management during the pandemic, the Bank acted in accordance with the Program of
Special Measures of NLB Banka d.d. Sarajevo for mitigation of the negative economic consequences
caused by the “COVID-19” viral disease created in accordance with the Decision of the Banking of FBiH
Agency on temporary measures to mitigate the negative economic consequences caused by the “Covid-
19” viral disease.

According to the Decision of the Banking Agency, banks could receive requests from clients for the
approval of special measures until December 31, 2021.

67



NLB BANKA d.d., SARAJEVO
Notes to Financial Statements - December 31, 2022

(All amounts are given in thousand BAM unless otherwise stated)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.30. Impact of the “Covid-19” Pandemic (continued)

In the Official Gazette of the Federation of BiH No. 21 of March 17, 2022, the Decision on Amendments
to the Decision on Temporary Measures Applied by Banks for Recovery from Negative Economic
Consequences Caused by the “COVID-19” Viral Disease (Official Gazette of the Federation of BiH, No.
60/20) was published. With this decision, the Banking Agency of the Federation of BiH again enables
the submission of requests for special measures, limiting the duration of the measure for the moratorium
until June 30, 2022, at the latest. while for measures “grace” and extension of maturity of loans with one-
time maturity, including revolving loans and overdrafts on transaction accounts for the period up to
31.12.2022. Accordingly, the Bank updated the Special Measures Program and provided its clients with
the opportunity to submit requests for special measures, while fulfilling the conditions for their approval
in accordance with the recommendations of the regulator. In December 2022, the Banking Agency made
a decision and published in the Official Gazette of the Federation of BiH ("Official Gazette of the
Federation of BiH", No. 104/21) on the extension of the deadline for submitting requests for special
measures until March 31, 2022.

In 2022, there were no additionally approved measures in accordance with the Decision on temporary
measures applied by the bank to recover from the negative economic consequences caused by the viral
disease "COVID-19".

The last reporting date for the submission of the report according to the Decision on temporary measures
applied by the bank to recover from the negative economic consequences caused by the viral disease
"COVID-19" was 31.12.2022.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.30. Impact of the “Covid-19” Pandemic (continued)

The following table shows the total level of loans for which measures were approved, as at 31 December
2022, broken down by credit risk levels at the reporting date:

Loans in Stage 3
Loans in Stage 1 Loans in Stage 2 at the date of
at the date of at the date of approval of
approval of approval of special
DESCRIPTION special measures special measures measures
Gross ’ Gross Gross
loan ECL loan ECL loan ECL
amount amount amount amount amount amount
Total corporate loans 14,520 261 1,342 120 2,346 1,931
A - Agriculture, forestry, and fishing - - - - - -
B - Mining and quarries - - - - - -
C - Processing industry 3,878 41 - B - -
D - Production and supply of electricity, gas, steam, and } _ )
air conditioning ) ) )
E - Water supply; sewerage, waste management and
remediation activities ) ) ) ) ) )
F - Construction 136 1 - - - -
Sndﬁihﬁ,lg :Snd retail trade; repair of motor vehicles 7.344 156 368 - 1,648 1,362
H - Traffic and storage 128 1 974 90 - -
I - Accommodation, food preparation and serving
o i 118 1 - - = -
activities; hotel and catering
J - Information and communication 109 1 - - 698 569
K - Financial and insurance activities - - - - - -
L - Real estate activities - - - - - -
M - Professional, scientific, and technical activities - - - - - -
N - Administrative and support service activities - - - - - -
0 —.Pu_bhc administration and defence; compulsory 2,807 60 ) ) ) )
social insurance
P - Education - - - - - E
Q - Health and social work activities - - - - - E
R - Arts, entertainment, and recreation - - - - - E
S - Other service activities - - - - - -
Total retail loans 9,809 120 551 85 2,275 2,134
General consumer 7,522 84 499 81 2,251 2,116
Housing 2,287 36 52 4 24 18
Business operations (entrepreneurs) - - - - - -
Total loans 24,329 381 1,893 205 4,621 4,065

As at 31.12.2022, of the total loan portfolio to which special measures were approved, BAM 24,329
thousand gross loans were classified in the level of credit risk 1 (stage 1), BAM 1,893 thousand in the level
of credit risk 2 (stage 2), while BAM 4,621 thousand were classified in the level credit risk 3 (stage 3).
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.30. Impact of the “Covid-19” Pandemic (continued)

The following table shows the total level of loans for which measures were approved, as at 31 December
2021, divided by credit risk levels at the reporting date:

Loans in Stage 1
at the date of

Loans in Stage 2
at the date of

Loans in Stage 3
at the date of
approval of

approval of approval of special
DESCRIPTION special measures special measures _ measures
Gross Gross Gross
loan ECL loan ECL loan ECL

amount amount amount amount amount amount
Total corporate loans 19,804 347 4,281 253 2,311 1,829
A - Agriculture, forestry, and fishing - - - - - -
B - Mining and quarries - - - - - -
C - Processing industry 6,368 35 560 28 - -
D - Production and supply of electricity, gas, steam, and - - - - - -
air conditioning
E - Water supply; sewerage, waste management and - - - - - -
remediation activities
F - Construction 369 6 - - - -
G - Wholesale and retail trade; repair of motor vehicles 9,355 233 1,956 136 1,612 1,294
and motorcycles
H - Traffic and storage 347 9 1,587 80 - -
I - Accommodation, food preparation and serving E - 175 9 - -
activities; hotel and catering
J - Information and communication 172 2 - - 699 535
K - Financial and insurance activities - - - - -
L - Real estate activities - - - - - -
M - Professional, scientific, and technical activities 3 - 3 - - -
N - Administrative and support service activities - - - E - -
O - Public administration and defence; compulsory 3,190 62 - - - -
social insurance
P - Education - - - - - -
Q - Health and social work activities - - - - - -
R - Arts, entertainment, and recreation - - - - - -
S - Other service activities - - - - - -
Total retail loans 12,269 97 3,477 459 2,329 2,048
General consumer 10,195 79 2,821 371 2,239 1,972
Housing 2,070 18 656 88 58 44
Business operations (entrepreneurs) 4 - - - 32 32
Total loans 32,073 444 7,758 712 4,640 3,877

As at 31.12.2021, of the total loan portfolio to which special measures were approved, BAM 32,037
thousand gross loans were classified in the level of credit risk 1 (stage 1), BAM 7.758 thousand in the level
of credit risk 2 (stage 2), while BAM 4,640 thousand were classified in the level credit risk 3 (stage 3).
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.31. Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions with respect to effects which influence reported amounts of
assets and liabilities in the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events which are
considered reasonable under the circumstances.

Impairment losses on loans, deposits with other banks and other assets and off-balance
sheet items exposed to risk

The Bank reviews its loan portfolio and other assets and off-balance sheet items to assess the level of
impairment monthly. The Bank determines whether a portfolio impairment loss should be recorded in
the profit or loss and assesses whether there is any observable data indicating that there will be a decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans and guarantees before the decrease can be
identified with individual loans in that portfolio.

Severance payments and unused vacation days

Severance payments are a legally established obligation of an employer to pay compensation to an
employee upon retirement. The effects of provisions for severance payments arising from differences
between projected actuarial payments and actual payments and changes in actuarial assumptions
(discount rate, employee turnover, increase in average salary, etc.) are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the balance sheet. The present value of these future
liabilities is calculated by applying a discount interest rate. Changes in the present value of liabilities
arising from the approach of the maturity date are recognized as interest expense. These provisions are
only used to settle expenses for which they have been originally created for. The Bank re-assesses the
value of these provisions as at 30 September each year.

As at 30.09.2022, the authorized actuary has made a calculation of provisions for severances for 2022 in
accordance with IAS 19 and the Bank has made the required adjustments.

An assessment of short-term provisions for unused vacation days is done in accordance with the number
of days of unused annual holidays as of balance sheet date and the Bank’s average gross per diem for
reporting year.

Litigations

The Bank’s management assesses the amount of provisions for outflows of funds based on litigation; the
assessment is based on the estimated probability of the future cash outflows, arising from past
contractual or legal obligations. More details on ongoing litigations are described in Note 27.

Income tax

The Bank is subject to income taxes in the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina and in the Bréko District
of Bosnia and Herzegovina. The Bank performs income tax assessments every month on the basis of

taxable accounts balances, and the final calculation is performed at December 31.

The average effective tax rate of the Bank is disclosed in Note 14.
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4. Bank's financial risk management

4.1. Risk management and transfer strategy

Risk management strategy represents part of the overall risk management system for risks to which the
Bank is exposed in its operations and is in line with the business policy and general strategy of the Bank.

The Strategy includes guidelines from the Risk Management Strategy of NLB Group. The main purpose
of the Strategy is to define key risks while achieving the defined medium-term strategic objectives of the
Bank as well as meeting all requests, both local regulator - Banking Agency of the Federation of Bosnia
and Herzegovina (Agency), and as directed by NLB d.d. Ljubljana including the requirements of the Bank
of Slovenia and ECB at the level of the NLB Group.

The Bank places significant emphasis on understanding and competencies in risk management across
the organization. A lot of emphasis is also placed on continuous improvement of the risk culture and its
awareness throughout the organization. The key objective of the Bank's risk management is to
comprehensively assess and monitor risks throughout the Bank. A comprehensive approach to risk
management is based on sound and reasonable conservative risk-taking orientations, considering
relevant professional criteria. At the same time, the Bank carries out development activities in this area
by developing methods and models for assessing, monitoring, and defining criteria for mitigating all
relevant types of risks.

The Strategy defines the kind of risks the Bank is willing to assume, those that are not acceptable to the
Bank, as well as the strategic guidelines for taking and managing risks at the Bank (including Risk
Appetite, Risk Profile, ICAAP, ILAAP, Recovery Plan, Budgeting and Equity Planning Process).

Basic goals and principles of Risk Taking and Risk Management Strategy are:

taking into account the criteria set out in the Risk Appetite;

» inclusion of risk analysis in the decision-making process at strategic and operational
level;

« focus on diversification to avoid large concentration at portfolio level;

« following the risk standards defined for all members at the NLB Group level;

+ rational introduction of new products and their analysis and monitoring;

» optimal use of capital;

»  price determination in accordance with appropriate risk;

»  full compliance with internal policies / procedures and applicable regulations;

» satisfactory system of internal controls, frame of three lines of defense.

Risk Appetite is a comprehensive document that defines the types and risk measures that the Bank is
ready to accept or avoid in order to achieve business goals. In that regard, it is a key point of the business
strategy, updating and improving the risk management strategy with quantitative measures. It
represents the basis for the ICAAP, the ILAAP, the Recovery Plan and other risk-limiting systems and
the underlying foundation in multi-year budgeting and capital planning.

ICAAP has key role in Bank’s risk management. ICAAP decreases risk uncertainty to which the Bank is
exposed or could be exposed in the course of its business while estimating ability of the Bank to maintain
required level of capital and effective risk management. ICAAP is a result of relevant business units
processes within the Bank, including Management and Supervisory board. The annual statement of the
Bank's Management Board on capital adequacy in the Bank gives a clear position of the current and
future position of the Bank in the field of capital adequacy management.
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)
4.1. Risk management and transfer strategy (continued)

ILAAP estimates overall liquidity requirements of the Bank with aim to secure good liquidity risk
management. ILAAP is result of relevant business units’ processes including Management and
Supervisory board. The annual Bank’s Management board statement on the adequacy of the Bank’s
liquidity gives clear position of current and future position of the Bank, in the field of liquidity risk
management.

Recovery Plan of NLB Banka d.d. Sarajevo is prepared with aim to secure financial sustainability of the
Bank, as well as restoring sustainable business functioning and appropriate Bank’s financial position in
case of worsening its financial position. The aim of the Recovery Plan.is to define procedures that enable
the Bank's Management to have timely insight into the potential threat to the Bank's financial stability.
For the purpose of crisis preparedness, preliminary plans have been developed on the measures to be
taken in the event of different types of emergencies.

The Strategy sets out material principles and guidelines for risk assumption in the following business
segments:

— lending to legal and natural persons,

- ensuring adequate volume of liquidity and managing liquidity reserves,

- ensuring an adequate source of funding structure, including guidance for retail banking in the
part related to savings products,

- management of market risk, that is, foreign exchange and interest rate risk, with the aim of
managing the Bank's own positions,

— conclusion of other financial transactions in the treasury business,

- operational risk management

More detailed rules, limits, guidelines, and competencies related to risk management are defined by
individual internal acts, policies and procedures.

The Bank is exposed to various risks in its operations, of which the following risks are crucial for the
Bank's overall operations:
— credit risk,
market risk,
liquidity risk,
— operational risk.

In addition, the Bank monitors the exposure to risks from the group of Other risks, defined in the
Guidelines for the application of ICAAP and ILAAP in the bank, where the emphasis is on minimizing
their possible impact on the Bank's operations. These include non-financial risks, i.e., leverage risk,
reputational risk, profitability risk, business risk, strategic risk and other risks from the group of Other
risks identified by the Bank. Tolerance to all types of risks is also determined based on annual
identification, measurement and assessment of material risks in the Bank within the ICAAP and ILAAP.
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)
4.2. Credit risk management

The Bank is exposed to the credit risk, which is the risk of loss due to debtors’ inability to settle its
cash commitments towards the Bank.

General requirements

Credit risk management, as the most important risk, is aimed at accepting moderate risks and
ensuring an optimal return given the risks taken. To maintain the medium and long-term viability of
the business, the Bank seeks to gradually increase the quality of the loan portfolio and increase
profitability, based on a better ratio between returns and risks taken. The main credit risk indicators
whose limits and target values are defined in Risk Appetite Banks are in the segment of maintaining
portfolio quality and credit risk volatility. The Bank paid spemal attention durlng 2022 to the
management of interest-induced credit risk due to macroeconomic developments in the market. In
2022, the bank proactively analysed the effects of the increase in the consumer basket and the
impacts on the income and creditworthiness of customers. The bank creates strategies for managing
interest-induced credit risk.

The key principles of risk taking and risk management are related to lending to clients, legal entities
(non-financial corporations) and individuals targeting the domestic market. The principles and rules
for lending to different segments are defined by the Bank's internal acts.

The emphasis is mainly on:

¢ defining the main conditions relating to the approval of placements and collateral

e defining target segments that the Bank is prepared to finance, as it sees potential, taking into
account the aspect of the risks taken

o defining segments that the Bank does not want to finance, either because of risks being too
high or too low profitability, taking into account assumed risks or other reasons

e a projection of expected losses the Bank is prepared to assume upon approval of the
placements, and

e defining the approach by which the Bank proactively manages risks arising from low-quality
exposures

Risk mitigation

The Bank has a moderate risk appetite for assuming risk. The main source of repayment is the
borrower's creditworthiness and available cash flow, while the placement security is considered to be
a secondary source of repayment. Credit risk mitigation is done through the provision of quality
collateral in accordance with the Bank's internal acts. Portfolios are diversified by business segments
and activities, with particular regard to exposures to a single entity or group of related parties.

In addition, regular monitoring and analysis of trends in the quality of individual segments of the
loan portfolio, with a particular focus on new transactions, allows early detection of increased risk as
well as optimization of taken risks relative to profitability.

Risk control and monitoring

The Bank monitors credit risk exposures in a manner that is consistent with the legal limits and in
line with the Bank's internal limits. Credit risk management is defined by internal acts as well as by
an adequately established organizational structure of the Bank's risk management and risk
management. Also, control in the process of assuming the level of credit risk is performed through
defined levels of decision making in the credit business.
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.2. Credit risk management (continued)

Total credit risk exposure

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15)
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 16)

Financial assets at amortised cost (Note 17)

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk

Financial assets

December 31, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15)
Financial assets at FVPL

Investinent in instruments of equity

Loans to customers, securities and other debt

instruments

Financial assets at amortized costs
Reserve at Central bank (Note 17a)
Deposits at other banks (Note 17b)
Loans to customers

Other financial assets (Note 17d)

Contingent liabilities (Note 28)
Total

December 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents

(Note 15)

Financial assets at FVPL
Investment in instruments of equity
Loans to customers, securities and other debt
instruments

Financial assets at amortized costs
Reserve at Central bank

(Note 17a)

Deposits at other banks (Note 17b)
Loans to customers

Other financial assets (Note 17d)

Contingent liabilities (Note 28)
Total

31.12.2022. 31.12.2021.

274,089 225,384
163,399 152,633
1,157,700 1,000,316

1,595,188 1,378,333

Total carrying Impairment Total net
value carrying value
274,314 (225) 274,089
164,276 877) 163,399
100 6] 99
164,176 (876) 163,300
1,198,981 (41,281) 1,157,700
140,588 (141) 140,447
462 (1) 461
1,053,531 (40,585) 1,012,946
4,400 (554) 3,846
1,637,571 (42,383) 1,595,188
226,586 (3,139) 223.447
1,864,157 (45,522) 1,818,635
225,584 (200) 225,384
152,633 - 152,633
84 - 84

152,549 - 152,549
1,040,645 (40,329) 1,000,316
116,965 (117) 116,848
434 - 434
918,986 (39,724) 879,262
4,260 (488) 3,772
1,418,862 (40,529) 1,378,333
162,400 (1,859) 160,541
1,581,262 (42,388) 1,538,874

The Bank performs regular reviews of assets, and the credit risk assessment is carried out on a
monthly basis based on established rating groups and regularity in servicing liabilities.
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.2. Credit risk management (continued)

Credit risk exposure regarding loans to customers and funds held with other banks, by credit rating,

is given below:

Bank deposits Loans to customers Total
December . n e -
31, 2022 Gross RISk Gross Rist Gross Ris!
pI‘OVlSlOIlS provisions provisions

A 462 (1) 623,481 (6,691) 623,943 (6,692)
B = - 360,942 (7,421) 360,942 (7.421)
C - - 42,001 © (1,503) 42,001 (1,503)
D - - 6,593 (5,116) 6,593 (5,116)
E - - 20,514 (19,854) 20,514 (19,854)
Total 462 (€)) 1,053,531 (40,585) 1,053,993 (40,586)
Total (net

gtal (ney) - 461 - 1,012,946 - 1,013,407

Bank deposits Loans to customers Total
December 31, ) . .
2021 Gross RISk Gross RISk Gross RISk
provisions provisions provisions
A 434 - 530,510 (3,564) 530,944 (3,564)
B 4 2 317,130 (4,634) 317,130 (4,634)
C 5 * 39,976 (2,254) 39,976 (2,254)
D - % 14,067 (12,055) 14,067 (12,055)
E = = 17,303 (17,217) 17,303 (17,217)
Total 434 - 018,086 (39,724) 919,420 (39,724)
Total (net)
434 879,262 879,696

Impairment losses and provisioning policy

The Bank assesses the impairment of receivables which represents the Bank's estimate of losses

incurred in its loan portfolio.

With the application of standard IFRS g, the expected credit losses are based on the transfer of assets
amongst three (3) stages. The change in credit quality and credit risk from the moment of initial
recognition represents one of the basic criteria for the transition/change between the Stages in which

the client is classified.

Collective impairment and provisions are calculated for financial assets and contingent liabilities
classified in Stage 1 and Stage 2 and non-performing clients that are not part of an individual

assessment and are classified in Stage-3.

Individual impairment and provisions are calculated for clients in Stage 3 with exposure over 50

thousand EUR.
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4. Bank’s financial risk management (continued)

4.2. Credit risk management (continued)
Collaterals
For most placements approved to customers, the Bank requires collateral.

Collaterals usually include one or a combination of following items:

o pledge of cash deposits,

. pledge of securities,

. pledge of property, including first line mortgage over property,
pledge of precious metals,

pledge of movable assets,

irrevocable guarantees,

insurance with an insurance company,

bills of exchange.

In addition to the above-mentioned, the Bank also uses the following elements for securing

placements:

. Co-guarantors,

. Cessions and assignations,

. Administrative order on monthly salary payments, or agreement on confiscation,
. and exceptionally guarantees by retail and legal entities,

The Bank retains the right to request any other type of collateral (or variation of above-mentioned
collateral) that it considers necessary.

Assessment of fair value of collateral is based on the value of collaterals evaluated in the moment of
borrowing and it is updated periodically in accordance with relevant credit policy.
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.2. Credit risk management (continued)

Credit exposure and collaterals before discounting for loans to clients and financial assets with other

banks:

December 31, 2022
Credit exposure, net
Loans to customers at AC
Placements with banks
Off-balance sheet exposure, net
Total

December 31, 2021
Credit exposure, net
Loans to customers at AC
Placements with banks
Off-balance sheet exposure, net

Total

Maximum credit Estimated fair value
risk exposure (net) of collaterals
1,012,946 1,565,849

1,012,946 1,565,849

. 461 -

223,447 239,224

1,236,854 1,805,073
Maximum credit Estimated fair value
risk exposure (net) of collaterals
879,262 1,387,373

879,262 1,387,373

434 =

160,541 168,724

1,040,237 1,556,097

Out of the total collateral value, as at December 31, 2022, amount of BAM 565,568 thousand relates
to business and residential real estates, while the rest of the collaterals are deposits, movable assets,
inventories, administrative orders, codebtors and bills of exchange.

As at December 31, 2021, out of the total value of collaterals, BAM 438,704 thousand relates to

business and residential real estates.
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.2. Credit risk management (continued)

Fair value of collateral per type of collateral for loans to customers, placements to banks and off-
balance exposures total for Stage 1, 2 and 3, and separately for Stage 3 is shown in following tables:

December 31, 2022

Stage 1,2 and 3
Retail loans
Housing loans
Consumer loans
Other retail loans
Corporate loans
Corporate customers
SME
Other customers
Off-balance sheet exposure
Guarantees
Letters of credit
Approved undrawn loans

Total

December 31, 2022

Stage 3

Retail loans

Housing loans
Consumer loans

Other retail loans
Corporate loans
Corporate customers
SME

Other customers
Off-balance sheet exposure
Guarantees

Letters of credit
Approved undrawn loans

Total

Gross . B Maximal
Fair value of collateral Impairment exposure to
exposure credit risk

1 d:i:)s:; ts Guarantee  Real estate l\’;&;\sr:lt)sle Total collateral 2 (3=1-2)
605,009 2,087 65 212,142 202 214,496 (24,744) 580,265
135,080 436 - 137,411 137,847 (2,789) 132,291
438,365 1,587 - 72,987 202 74,776 (20,885) 417,480
31,564 64 65 1,744 1,873 (1,070) 30,494
448,522 9,113 1,994 292,455 11,011 314,573 (15,841) 432,681
391,686 5,982 1,784 263,278 8,748 279,792 (10,609) 381,077
40,312 2,591 65 23,838 1,922 28,416 (4,788) 35,524
16,524 540 145 5,339 341 6,365 (444) 16,080
226,586 4,204 2,361 60,971 1,207 68,743 (3,139) 223,447
98,520 3,490 2,361 16,179 1,207 23,237 (1,508) 97,012
636 - (6) 630
127,430 714 44,792 45,506 (1,625) 125,805

1,280,117 15,404 4,420 565,568 12,420 597,812 43,724) 1.226
Gross . . Maximal
exposure Fair value of collateral Impairment exposure to
credit risk

1 deCpa::;ts Guarantee Real estate Mag\;:lt);e Total collateral 2 (3=1-2)
17,036 4 3 3,918 ¢ 3,918 (15,791) 1,245
866 - - 906 - 906 (764) 102
15,514 - 3,012 - 3,012 (14,418) 1,096
656 (609) 47
10,071 2 = 7,283 67 7,352 (9,179) 892
5,311 ~ = 2,517 2,517 (4,836) 475
4,527 d = 4,766 4,768 (4,160) 367
233 x 67 67 (183) 50
546 7 - 1,080 - 1,087 (116) 430
512 7 1,080 - 1,087 (86) 426
34 = = 5 (30) 4
27,653 9 - 12,281 67 12,357 (25,086) 2,567
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.2. Credit risk management (continued)

December 31, 2021

Stage1,2and 3
Retail loans
Housing loans
Consumer loans
Other retail loans
Corporate loans
Corporate customers
SME
Other customers
Off-balance sheet exposure
Guarantees
Letters of credit
Approved undrawn loans

Total

December 31, 2021

Stage 3
Retail loans
Housing loans
Consumer loans
Other retail loans
Corporate loans
Corporate customers
SME

Other customers

Off-bal sheet exp e
Guarantees

Letters of credit

Approved undrawn loans

Total

Maximal
ex(;’):)os?re Fair value of collateral Impairment etﬁl)c(:-iﬁ:
risk
1 d:i::)s;;ts Guarantee Real estate Ol ’.I:Otal al 2 (3=1-2)

511,146 1,975 - 144,928 182 147,085 (25,549) 485,597
105,007 357 N 99,876 - 100,233 (2,009) 102,998
376,526 1,483 - 43,975 1 45,459 (22,498) 354,028
29,613 135 - 1,077 181 1,393 (1,042) 28,571
407,840 8,901 737 270,605 11,845 292,178 (14,175) 393,665
353,070 5,600 737 240,183 9,421 255,941 (8,363) 344,707
37,700 2,631 s 24,082 2,129 29,042 (5,084) 32,616
17,070 760 5 6,140 295 7,195 (728) 16,342
162,400 3,872 1,069 23,171 1,537 29,649 (1,859) 160,541
81,204 3,327 1,069 12,390 1,509 18,295 (1,288) 79,916
955 - - 37 = 37 (16) 939
80,241 545 = 10,744 28 11,317 (555) 79,686
1,081,386 14,838 1,806 438,704 13,564 468,912 (41,583) 1,039,803

Maximal

ex(:)l(‘)ossus;‘e Fair value of collateral Impairment ‘:’;l:;i‘;":

risk
1 d:i:los:;ts Guarantee Realestate “0vable coTlZ::iﬂ 2 (3=1-2)

21,182 B R 7,200 % 7,290 (19,835) iy
1,208 ~ . 1,214 = 1,214 1,077) iy
19,085 ; : 6,076 - 6,076 (17,931) Raaad!
889 z " = = 0 (827) £
10,188 - 2 7,410 83 7,493 (9,437 75t
5,288 ; : 2,375 - 2,375 (4,766) G
4,557 : : 5,035 - 5,035 (4,328) #ad
343 : 2 3 83 83 (343) °
48 4 - - - 4 48 i
7 4 = s - 4 @) .
41 : - = - - (41) i
31,418 " - 14,700 83 14,787 (29,320) 2098
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.2. Credit risk management (continued)

Overviews of LTV (loan to value) ratios for 2022 and 2021 are presented below:

LTV ratio Amount of

December 31, 0-30% 30-60% 60-90% 90-100% 100-120% 120-% uncovered Total
2022 loans

Housing loans 2,360 15,609 48,209 24,935 2,029 774 41,163 135,079
Consumer loans 1,932 11,896 17,986 9,735 454 1,708 394,655 438,365
Total 4,292 27,505 66,195 34,670 2,483 2,482 435,818 573,445
LTV ratio Amount of

December 31, 0-30% 30-60% 60-90% 90-100% 100-120% 120-% uncovered Total
2021 loans

Housing loans 1,945 10,594 27,850 23,028 5,142 467 35981 105,007
Consumer loans 1,018 5537 6,997 6,455 1,665 286 353,068 376,526
Total 3,863 16,131 34,847 29,483 6,807 753 389,649 481,533

Loan portfolio per industrial sector is presented in the table below. Calculated interests and fees
which increase the balance of loan receivables and bank placements, as well as accrued income,
deducted from loan receivables and bank placements, are presented within the separate positions in

the table below.

Retail

Trade

Mining and industry

Financial institutions

Building construction industry
Transportation and communications
Trading in real estate

Services, tourism, catering
Agriculture, forestry and fishing
Other

Interests and fees
Deferred fees for loans
processing

Less: Impairment allowance

31.12.2022.
BAM %

604,820 57,42

31.12.2021.
BAM %

511,272 55,63

201,228 19,10 192,853 20,98
122,319 11,61 119,334 12,98
14,500 1,38 9,768 1,06
33,661 3,20 20,734 2,26
32,207 3,06 21,470 2,34
5,944 0,56 10,294 1,12
7,238 0,69 10,571 1,15
2,342 0,22 1,725 0,19
29,081 2,76 21,009 2,29
1,053,340 100,00 919,030 100,00
2,847 2,435
(2,194) (2,045)
1,053,993 919,420
(40,586) (39,724)
1,013,407 879,696
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)
4.2. Credit risk management (continued)

Non-Performing Loans

Non-Performing Loans (NPL) are the Bank’s loans classified into categories D and E. Management
of non-performing portfolio is done in the Department for Collection and NPL Management. For all
Corporate and SME customers in Categories D and E whose total exposure to a client or group of
related entities is over 1,000 EUR, immediately after the fulfilment of these criteria a procedure is
initiated to transfer the customer from the business component to the Department for Collection and
NPL Management (corporate collection department/retail collection department).

As of June 1, 2017, Sector is divided into two organizational units, the Corporate Collection
Department and Retail Collection Department, where the process of early, late and court collection
of claims from problematic clients is being run and monitored.

The process of collecting claims for retail is centralized and oversees the Retail Collection
Department.

All activities for collecting claims for retail clients are undertaken solely by the Retail Collection
Department and start from the first day of the client's delay through early collection and continue
through late collection activities and initiation of court proceedings until the claims are closed or the
client recovered.

In the collection process for corporate entities, the Corporate Collection Department is involved with
collection activity starting from a 31st day of delay, which implies customer interaction, meeting, and
defining collection strategy for the client along with the Corporate Sector. With the classification of
a client in a credit rating class D and E, the client enters the jurisdiction of the Corporate Collection
Department, where the collection strategy is defined individually for each client (restructuring,
settlement, and collateral, collection from collaterals, initiation and conducting court proceedings).

If the clients under the jurisdiction of Collection department and NPL management establish the
continuity in payment without delays and exit financial difficulties after the recovery period, then
they are returned to Performing portfolio under the jurisdiction of corporate department and Retail
department.

In the process of collection of receivables, the clients, for which restructuring measures were taken,
are included.

Measures for restructuring debt include a "concession"” to a debtor which is caused by deterioration
in economic and financial situation of the customer and his inability to service the debt under
previously agreed terms and conditions. A client with financial difficulties may be performing or non-
performing,.

Restructured receivables represent the "forborne” exposure of the Bank that needs to be considered
in the sectors for PE - performing entities of the Sector for Corporate and the Sector for Retail or NPE
- non-performing entities of the Sector for collection and non-performing asset management. "R"
represents receivables with granted concessions due to financial difficulties (concessions would not
have been approved if client didn't have financial difficulties).
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)
4.2. Credit risk management (continued)

The overview of the forborne loans is presented in the table by segment:

December 31, 2022

Performing Non-
Segment portfolio performing Total

portfolio
Corporate clients 512 - 512
SME clients - 3,387 3,387
Other clients - - -
Retail & 143 143
512 3.530 4,042

December 31, 2021

Performing Doy
Segment portfolio performing Total

portfolio
Corporate clients - - -
SME clients . 3,383 3,383
Other clients 591 50 641
Retail 76 184 260
667 3,617 4,284

Impairment allowances for loans with forborne status are presented in the table by segment:

December 31, 2022

Segment Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Corporate clients - 66 4 66
SME clients - - 3,047 3,047
Other clients - - - -
Retail - - 102 102

- 66 3,149 3,215

December 31, 2021

Segment Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Corporate clients - - - -
SME clients E - 3,220 3,220
Other clients - 154 50 204
Retail - 13 168 181

= 167 3:438 3,605
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)
4.2. Credit risk management (continued)

Reprograms and restructuring

The restructuring of liabilities aims to enable the client to repay liabilities in accordance with its
realistic capabilities, while ensuring more efficient and secure collection of the Bank's receivables. In
that sense, the restructuring of liabilities represents a change in the conditions agreed upon when
approving the loan (e.g., extension of repayment terms, reduction of the interest rate, etc.). The
purpose of restructuring is to prevent a potential loss to the Bank, so it is important that restructuring
is attempted at an early stage of delay (or even before the client begins to be late) if the client is unable
to meet its obligations.

However, restructuring may also be possible for clients in the late or court collection phase in cases
where restructuring is a better option for the Bank, or the client requires restructuring due to changed
circumstances (e.g. employment of the client).

The decision on the restructuring of the client's obligations is made by the competent authority, in
accordance with the authorizations determined by the Decision on authorizations in credit
operations.

Restructured exposure may be identified as both in the uncollectable (NPL) and in collectable (PL)
part of the portfolio.

Number of Gross loan
restructured loans exposures
(number of
transactions)

December 31, 2022
Corporate 3 143
Retail and entrepreneurs 7 3,895
Total 10 4,038
December 31, 2021
Corporate 7 4,032
Retail and entrepreneurs 10 260
Total 17 4,292
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)
4.2. Credit risk management (continued)

Watch Loan Committee, Watch List and Intensive Care List

Watch Loan Committee (hereinafter referred to as WLC) is a body that has the task of defining all
activities that the Bank undertakes to collect receivables from performing clients of natural and legal
entities where one or more EWS signals (Early Warning Signs) have been recognized. or which,
according to the criteria, are or should be on the Watch list (hereinafter: WL) or Intensive care list
(hereinafter: ICL), and for clients legal entities refers to the delay of receiving from 8 to 9o days
according to the international methodology for determining the date of delay, which are not classified
as NPL clients and clients A, B and C creditworthiness), and NPL clients (clients of D
creditworthiness) who have been granted restructuring/reprogramming obligations and or an out-
of-court settlement, and up to the initiation of court proceedings. For client’s natural persons EWS
signals as well as WL1/WL 2 refers to clients with o days delay. The detailed powers, responsibilities
and mode of work of the Committee are prescribed by the Rules of Procedure of the Watch Loan
Committee and the Watch Loan Committee and monitoring watch list.

The goal of the WLC is:

> establishing a continuous process of identification of potentially problematic clients based
on early warning signals in the Bank,
stop the delay day counter (according to the local and international methodology for
determining the days of delay),
analysis of submitted proposals for inclusion and exclusion of clients on WL and ICL,
making decisions on listing and excluding clients on WL and ICL,
defining measures to be taken towards clients,
all with the aim of mitigating risks and stopping negative trends.

VVV V¥V

WL1 and WL2 include clients with a delay of 8 to 30 days, and ICL includes clients with a delay of 31
to 9o days, i.e., clients for which WLC has decided to be included in one of the lists.

Clients listed on WL1 retain the existing level of credit risk (stage) in which they are classified at the
time of listing on WL1 and the creditworthiness valid at the time of listing on WL1, and clients listed
on WL2 are assigned or retained credit risk level 2 2), depending on the existing classification of the
client in the level of credit risk at the time of listing on WL2, and the creditworthiness of the CCC is
determined. Clients who are admitted to WL1 are retained the existing level of credit risk (stage) in
which they are classified at the time of inclusion on WL1 and creditworthiness valid at the time of
inclusion on WL1, and clients who are admitted to WL2 are assigned or maintained a level of credit
risk 2 (stage 2), depending on the existing classification of the client in the level of credit risk at the
time of inclusion on WL2, and the creditworthiness of the CCC is established.

The ICL list includes:

» Performing clients - / Corporate / SME / Micro /, who are in default of 31 to 9o days
according to the international methodology for determining the days of delay, classified in
stage 2 and 3 according to local regulatory regulations,

» NPL clients (D creditworthiness clients) as well as clients who have been approved for
restructuring / rescheduling of obligations or out-of-court settlement, until the initiation of
court proceedings.

Creditors assigned to the ICL list are assigned or retained credit risk level 2 (stage 2) and credit rating
Cis determined, provided that for customers assigned to the NPL, credit rating group D is credit risk
level 3 (stage 3).
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)
4.2. Credit risk management (continued)

In addition to the criteria for days of delay on the last day of the month, the Bank considers other
important factors for the potential inclusion of the client in the WL, i.e., ICL:
> transaction account blocking (clients whose account is found to be blocked are included in
the ICL)
frequent change of management,
change of creditworthiness,
degree of financial security,
financial debts according to EBITDA ratio,
poor FBA category of debtors in other Banks or poor FBA category of co-borrowers,
bankruptey or liquidation proceedings with the co-debtor,
Decision of the Credit Committee on the inclusion of the client in the WL / ICL,
overdue liabilities over 100 BAM,
negative information in the media (printed and electronic),
other reasons why the WLC decides that it can classify clients into WL and ICL.

VVVVVVVVVY

Vintage analysis

The Bank monitors the quality of approved placements and days past due after approval using two
types of vintage analysis. Vintage 30+ and Vintage 9o+ are used to track the number, value, and
percentage of loans that are in delay 30+ or 9o+ days as of the month of contract. The Vintage 30+
report starts after at least 2 months have passed since contracting, while the 9o+ report records delay
after 4 months have elapsed since contracting. Vintage reports are updated on a monthly basis, so
that they consistently number all the previous months from the contracting date to the reporting
date, and for the purposes of simpler reporting, cross sections 4, 6, 12, 18, 24 and 36 months from
the moment of contracting are used, significant changes are also taken into account in other time
periods. For a Retail loans segment, it is diversified into 4 types of residential mortgage, consumer,
credit card and overdraft facilities, while for corporate loans diversification refers to maturity, i.e.,
long-term loans, short-term and overdrafts and business cards.

The average percentage of delay of 9o+ 12 months after approval is observed on a monthly level of
0.25% as at 31.12.2022 and the significant improvement compared to 2021 is visible (0.45%).

Vintage 90+ analysis Retail entities
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.2. Credit risk

management (continued)

The table below shows quarterly movements of share of exposures in 9o+ days past due, compared
to the quarter in which it is contracted, with sections of 12, 18, 24, and 36 months after contracting.

4 a1 @ Q@ 4 a @ @ o a1 @® @8 o4 a @ @

2016 2017 2017 2017

Q4 Qa1

Q2 Qa3 Q4

2017 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021
Vintage @12M 0,59% 0,57% 0,56% 0,55% 0,44% 0,41% 0,88% 0,60% 0,58% 0,85% 0,81% 1,19% 0,90% 1,02% 0,57% 0,10%
Vintage @18 M 0,82% 1,32% 0,75% 1,00% 0,80% 0,65% 1,46% 0,91% 1,49% 161% 1,57% 1,58% 1,59% 1,42% 0,75% 0,22%
Vinlage @24 M 1,06% 1,53% 0,60% 1,27% 0,73% 1,12% 1,96% 1,95% 1,90% 1,96% 2,12% 2,24% 1,99% 1,29% 0,00% 0,00%
Vintage @36 M 1,74% 2,09% 165% 1,77% 1,47% 2,12% 2,30% 2,14% 2,23% 1,0% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00%

0,17% 0,16% 0,19% 0,20% 0,49%
0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00%
0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00%
0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00%

Legal entities have a special view of tracking client delays in settling liabilities through WLC so that
90+ delays occur in isolated cases. Vintage 9o+ analysis as at 31.12.2022 concludes that in the
observed year one client, i.e. one batch of loans was in arrears 9o+, and that the same was approved

during 2021,

Vintage 90+ analysis Corporate entities
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The table below shows quarterly movements of share of exposure in 9o+ delays compared to the
quarter in which it is contracted, with sections of 12, 18, 24, and 36 months after contracting,. It is

not possible to derive legitimacy since the peaks are caused by individual isolated cases.

@ a @ 3 4 @ @ 03 4 a @ 3 8 a w
2016 2017 2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021

Vintage @12 M 0,44% 0,10%
Vintage @18 M 0,59% 0,13%
Vintage @24 M 0,59% 0,10%
Vintage @36 M 0,45% 0,07%

3,32% 0,07% 0,04% 0,61% 0,83% 0,00% 0,04% 0,00% 3,42% 0,00% 0,05% 0,05% 0,00%
1,25% 0,07% 0,15% 0,71% 0,56% 0,19% 0,09% 0,01% 4,22% 0,02% 0,90% 0,05% 0,00%
1,25% 0,07% 0,12% 0,71% 0,56% 0,18% 0,09% 0,03% 4,22% 0,02% 0,90% 0,05% 0,00%
0,00% 0,00% 0,10% 0,68% 0,56% 1,33% 0,08% 0,01% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00%

3 o

0,00% 0,00%
0,01% 0,00%
0,00% 0,00%
0,00% 0,00%

a a2 @ o

0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,18%
0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00%
0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00%
0,00% 0,00% 0,00% 0,00%
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)
4.2. Credit risk management (continued)
Off-balance sheet items

(a) Loan liabilities

The timings of contractual amounts of the Bank’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
committing it to extend loans to customers are summarized in the table below.

Uptotyear From1itos Over 5 Total
years years
As of December 31, 2022
Loan liabilities 106,322 14,049 7,059 127,430
As of December 31,2021
Loan liabilities 80,102 139 - 80,241

(b)  Other financial liabilities - guarantees

Other financial liabilities are also included in the table below, based on the earliest contractual
maturity date.

Uptoiyear From1itojs Over 5 Total
years years
As of December 31, 2022
Other financial facilities 68,536 24,356 6,264 99,156
As of December 31, 2021
Other financial facilities 54,236 27,917 6 82,159

88



NLB BANKA d.d., SARAJEVO
Notes to Financial Statements - December 31, 2022

(All amounts are given in thousand BAM unless otherwise stated)

4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)
4.3 Market risk

Risk measurement

The measurement of exposure to market risks is performed in accordance with regulations and the
methodology for measuring the quantity of risk exposure on the level of the NLB Group, by using
standard approach. The NLB Group has relatively conservative policy for market risk management,
which includes certain limitations and procedures in policies and other documents of the NLB Group.

General requirements

The Bank is exposed to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rates, foreign currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general
and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Market risks, in terms of the Banking Law, are
considered to be position risk, currency (foreign exchange) risk and commodity risk, of which currency
(foreign exchange) risk is the most significant for the Bank. In addition, equity risk, investment risk,
settlement risk and free delivery risk are also considered in the group of market risks.

The Management Board sets limits and guidelines for monitoring and mitigating market risks, which
is regularly monitored by the Bank's ALCO Committee.

When it comes to market risk management, the key factor is the separation of responsibilities
between the monitoring and management of market risks Non-credit risks are regularly monitored
by the Risk department, which analyses whether all positions for certain types of risk are within the
defined limits. Open positions are managed by the Asset liability management department of the
Bank which maintains them within the given limits.

Risk mitigation

The department for trading daily currency conversions maintains the foreign exchange position within
legally and internally established limits, and continuously conducts different activities to reduce
market risks to the lowest level.

Risk controlling and monitoring

Risk controlling is used to monitor compliance with certain legal and internal limits. Market risk
controlling, and monitoring is supported by internal methodologies adjusted to Basel Standards. In
accordance with the local regulations the Bank provides the necessary level of capital for covering
potential unexpected losses due to exposure to currency and other market risks.

4.4 Foreign currency risk management

Currency risk is the Bank’s exposure to the possible impact of changes in exchange rates and the risk
that adverse changes result in losses for the Bank in BAM (local currency). The level of risk represents
a function of level and the size of exposure to possible changes of exchange rates for the Bank,
depending on the amount of bank’s foreign debt and the level of Bank’s open balance sheet and off-
balance FX positions, i.e. the degree of compliance of its currency flows.

Foreign currency exposure arises from loans, deposits, and investment and trading activities. It is
monitored daily in accordance with legislation and internally set limits for each currency and for the
total balance sheet denominated or linked to a foreign currency. Throughout the year open currency
positions were maintained in accordance with the regulations set by the Banking Agency of FBiH and
internal limits defined by the Methodology of the NLB Group, considering the comprehensiveness of
the impact on other limits in the event of an increase in foreign exchange risk exposure, primarily
capital-related limits.
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)
4.4 Foreign currency risk management (continued)

Since BAM has a fixed exchange rate to EUR, in accordance with the Currency Board arrangement,
the Bank was not exposed to changes in EUR exchange rate. Fluctuations in other currencies did
not have a significant influence on exposure of the Bank to foreign currency risk since the open
foreign exchange position was reduced to a minimum.

The following table details the sensitivity of the Bank to a 10% increase and a decrease in BAM
relative to the USD calculated on the Bank's net foreign exchange position.

2022 2021
USD Profit/(loss) 3/(3) 2/(2)
The Bank had the following currency position:
December 31, 2022 EUR USD BAM Other Total
curre
ncies
Financial assets
Cash, cash equivalents and mandatory reserve
with CB 44,172 6,101 361,422 2,841 414,536
Deposits with other banks - 461 - - 461
Loans and receivables from clients - - 508,771 - 508,771
Loans and receivables from clients with a
foreign currency clause (EUR) 504,175 B ) ) 504,175
Financial assets at fair value OCI 90,555 1,815 65,204 1,083 159,557
Financial assets at fair value OCI with foreign 842 _ ) ) 842
exchange clause S s
Other financial assets according to AC 1,404 - 2,440 2 3,846
644,148 8,377 937,837 4,826 1,595,188
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial 45,140 " 1,501 ) 53,682
organizations ’ ’ ’
Deposits from banks and other financial
organizations with foreign exchange clause 57,388 - - - 57,388
(EUR)
Deposits from clients 278,967 8,166 769,472 4,545 1,061,150
Deposits from clients with foreign exchange
claEse (EUR) g & 188,281 - - - 188,281
Loans taken 61,292 - - - 61,292
Subordinated debt 6,006 - - - 6,006
Other financial obligations under AC 5,568 180 17,582 182 23,512
639,642 8,347 798,595 4,727 1,451,311
Foreign exchange position, net 4,506 30 139,242 99 143,877
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.4. Foreign currency risk management (continued)

December 31, 2021 EUR USD BAM Other Total
curre
ncies
Financial assets
Cash, cash equivalents and mandatory reserve
with CB 49,488 7,196 279,149 6,399 342,232
Deposits with other banks - 434 - - 434
Loans and receivables from clients - E 480,517 - 480,517
Loans and receivables from clients with a
foreign currency clause (EUR) 398,742 ) ) ) 398,742
Financial assets at fair value OCI 105,677 1,726 36,423 - 143,826
Financial assets at fair value OCI with foreign 8.807 ) } ) 8.807
exchange clause
Other financial assets according to AC 1,325 B 2,447 - 3,772
564,039 9,356 798,536 6,399 1,378,330
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial
organizations 27,205 17 10,438 ) 37,660
Deposits from banks and other financial
organizations with foreign exchange clause 21,251 B - - 21,251
(EUR)
Deposits from clients 263,963 9,182 638,560 5,831 917,536
3;3;):12}53 SORT clients with foreign exchange 210,614 = = = 210,614
Loans taken 24,681 - - - 24,681
Subordinated debt 5,918 B - - 5,918
Other financial obligations under AC 6,518 136 21,936 204 28,884
560,150 9,335 670,934 6,125 1,246,544
Foreign exchange position, net 3,889 21 127,602 274 131,786

4.5. Interest rate risk management

The Bank's operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that interest
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities mature or re-price at different times or in different
amounts.

In case of floating rates, the Bank’s assets and liabilities are also exposed to base risk, which is the
difference in the re-pricing characteristics of the various floating rate indices, such as savings rates,
the six months EURIBOR, and different types of interest. Risk management activities are consistent
with the Bank's business strategies, and they are aimed at optimizing net interest income given the
market interest rate levels.

The Bank produced Policies and procedures for monitoring of market risk management, whose goal
is to manage and limit the potential losses of the Bank, due to changes in foreign and domestic
interest rates that affect the economic and market value of the Bank.

To achieve the Policies’ goals for monitoring interest rate risk exposure, the Bank identifies positions
that are sensitive to change in interest rates, prepares data for the calculation of interest-sensitive
positions, establishes methods for risk measurement, establishes control mechanisms and limits,
determines authorizations and responsibilities, and prepares reports.

The purpose of interest rate risk management, as one segment of assets and liabilities management,
is to determine the optimal interest rate, and with that, the Bank’s income, considering market
conditions and the competitive environment, and to adjust the interest rate in line with the Bank’s
assets and liabilities.
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.5. Interest rate risk management (continued)

Considering this objective, it is extremely important to assess the sensitivity of revenues towards
abrupt changes in the market interest rate.

As a protection from interest rate risk exposure, the Bank contracts the variable interest rate, adjusts
the structure of interest-bearing assets and liabilities subject to interest payment, and uses other
interest rate risk management instruments.

The Bank manages the interest rate risk in the following manner:

- By adequately determining the level of the interest margin, by adjusting the interest rates on
positions of interest-sensitive assets and liabilities to be within the same maturity and time
intervals within which the re-establishment of the interest rate is being performed; and/or

- By securing maturity alignment of interest-sensitive assets and liabilities (when the fixed
interest rate is used), or by adjusting the deadline (time interval for re-establishment of the
interest rates in cases where variable interest rate is being used).

The Bank is exposed to risks that affect its financial position and cash flows, through the effects of
change in interest rates on the market. The table below shows the Bank’s exposure to interest rate
risk.

The positions of assets and liabilities with the balance as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are shown
in the table at the book value and in accordance with the agreed interest rate and the date of repricing.

92



NLB BANKA d.d., SARAJEVO
Notes to Financial Statements - December 31, 2022

(All amounts are given in thousand BAM unless otherwise stated)
4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.5. Interest rate risk management (continued)
until 1 1—3 3-12 over 5

month months months 172 Years years fiotal
31 December 2022
Assets
A vista assets 215,041 - - - - 215,041
Term deposits - - 140,447 462 - 140,909
Loans 276,963 332,838 332,269 53,848 16,903 1,012,821
Securities 3,912 40,113 63,728 54,970 4,000 166,723
Total assets 495,916 372,951 536,444 109,280 20,903 1,535,494
Liabilities
A vista assets 11,976 - 889,066 - - 901,042
Term deposits 13,896 94,943 200,905 146,450 193 456,387
Loans - 23,190 18,301 19,907 5,867 67,265
Total liabilities 25,872 118,133 1,108,272 166,357 6,060 1,424,694
Exposure to interest
risk, net 470,044 254,818 (571,828) (57,077) 14,843 110,800

until 1 1—-3 3-12 } over 5

month months months 172 Years years Total
31 December 2021
Assets
A vista assets 167,709 - - = - 167,709
Term deposits 3,987 - 116,965 434 - 121,386
Loans 105,663 291,834 445,843 37,579 6,719 887,638
Securities 4,646 44,594 53,275 49,199 : 151,714
Total assets 282,005 336,428 616,083 87,212 6,719 1,328,447
Liabilities
A vista assets 11,927 - 747,123 - - 759,050
Term deposits 20,615 61,750 262,918 78,667 228 424,178
Loans = 1,956 9,744 12,992 5,867 30,559
Total liabilities 32,542 63,706 1,019,785 91,659 6,095 1,213,787
Exposure to interest
risk, net 249,463 272,722  (403,702) (4,447) 624 114,660

As at 31.12.2022, the Bank is mostly exposed to items with a variable interest rate (61.54% of the total
portfolio), while the rest is with a fixed interest rate (38.46% of the portfolio). When it comes to
reference rates, they are included in variable interest rates. The Bank's portfolio with a variable
interest rate mostly refers to items with an administratively variable interest rate (more than
92.25%), while the reference rates refer to 7.75% of the portfolio (mostly items with EURIBOR, and
a very small part with LIBOR).

In its management of interest rate risk, the Bank uses a simulation of expected and extreme
changes in interest rates and the influence of these changes on the profit or loss.
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.5. Interest rate risk management (continued)

The following table presents the impact of expected changes in interest rates to the Bank’s profit,
while all other variables remain unchanged:

Profit or loss sensitivity to change in interest rates as at December 31, 2022

Impact on profit or Impact on profit or
Increase in interest rates loss in BAM Increase in interest rates loss in BAM
+50 bp 1,822 -50 bp (1,823)

Profit or loss sensitivity to change in interest rates as at December 31, 2021

.. Impact on p,mﬁt O Decrease in interest rates Impactlon p_roflt .
Increase in interest rates loss in BAM oss in BAM

+50 bp 19 -50 bp (14)

Interest rate sensitivity as a result of changes in market interest rates affects two categories:

- The amount of net interest income,

- The market value of certain financial instruments (interest-sensitive investments and sources),
which consequently affects the market value of the Bank's capital.

The sensitivity of the profit or loss in the table shows how changes in market interest rates, applied
to the existing interest sensitive open position, would reflect on the financial result. The limit for the
income aspect of credit risk, presented as a decrease in net interest income in case of a parallel change
in interest rates by 50 bp, is 3.5% of capital. The effect of interest rate decreases by 50 bp, at December
31, 2021 was 0.01% of capital, while at December 31, 2022 it was 1.20%.

In line with the Policies and procedures for the monitoring of interest rate risk exposure, the Bank
must meet the criteria of impact of a parallel shift in interest rates by 200 basis points, which is
applied to the existing open interest rate position in accordance with certain time intervals. In 2022,
there were no significant changes in policy and procedures for monitoring interest rate risk exposure.
The economic value of Equity (EVE) indicator is 8%.

Sensitivity of the market value of financial instruments at December 31, 2022

Effect of simulation Effect of simulation in
Change of interest rates in 000 BAM relation to capital
200 bp 7,285 4,81%

Sensitivity of the market value of financial instruments at December 31, 2021

Effect of simulation Effect of simulation in
Changge of interest rates in 000 BAM relation to capital
200 bp 2,314 1,72%
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.6 Liquidity risk management
Definition

Liquidity is the ability of a bank to finance an increase in assets on the one hand and also fulfil
maturity obligations on the other hand, but without creating unacceptable costs. Liquidity risk is
probability that the Bank will not have sufficient cash assets for the normal course of its business
activities in the future.

Liquidity risk arises in the general funding of the Bank's activities and in the management of
positions. It includes both the risk of being unable to fund assets at appropriate maturities and rates
and the risk of being unable to liquidate an asset at a reasonable price and in an appropriate time
frame.

General requirements

The Bank has access to a diverse funding base. Funds are raised using a broad range of instruments
including various types of retail and corporate deposits, borrowings and share capital and through
emission of bonds. This enhances funding sources flexibility, limits dependence on one source of
funds and generally lowers the cost of funds.

The Bank strives to maintain a balance between the continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of liabilities with a range of maturities. The Bank continually assesses liquidity risk by identifying
and monitoring changes in funding, required to meet business goals and targets set in terms of the
overall strategy of the Bank. Furthermore, the Bank keeps a portfolio of liquid assets as part of its
strategy for liquidity risk management.

The measurement of liquidity risk is performed through reporting on structural liquidity and
liquidity gaps that show the long-term aspects of securing the Bank's liquidity (in relation to assets,
liabilities, the relationship between assets and liabilities and financing source structure). In
accordance with local regulations, the Bank is obliged to maintain a minimum liquidity requirement
through the LCR coverage coefficient, which was previously monitored due to the requirements of
the NLB Group's Risk Management Standard. Risk exposure is also measured using the Scoring
model.

The Bank regularly conducts stress testing in its liquidity risk management process.

The Bank regularly performs the Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process (ILAAP).

The purpose of ILAAP is to establish a strong liquidity risk management system in the Bank. In
accordance with the Risk Management Strategy and Risk Appetite, liquidity risk tolerance is low.
ILAAP is included in the day-to-day business process and business decisions in the form of daily
monitoring of cash flows, the results of stress tests serve to define the volume of liquid reserves, and
the defined indicators in the internal system of limits related to monitoring liquidity risk exposure
are used to activate the Contingency Plan or the Bank's Recovery Plan.
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.6. Liquidity risk management (continued)

Risk controlling

The Bank adjusts its business activities in compliance with liquidity risk according to legislation and
internal policies for the maintenance of liquidity reserves, the matching of liabilities and assets,
limits, and preferred liquidity ratios. The Bank's Treasury manages liquidity reserves daily, also
ensuring that the Bank satisfies all customer needs.

Monitoring liquidity risk expostre

In accordance with Risk Management Standards in the NLB Group, a monthly report is made on

structural liquidity, in which the following ratios are monitored:

e  Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) — protective amount of liquidity/total net outﬂows in the next 30
days,

e Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) - available amount of funds for stable funding / required
amount of funds for stable funding,

e Net Loan to Deposit Ratio (NET LTD) — the ratio of net loans (minus impairment) and

deposits (net loans to non-banking sector/deposits of non-banking sector),

The share unmortgaged liquid reserves in total assets (AUAR),

Share of non-bank deposits in the total liabilities (excluding equity),

Share of resources of 30 largest non-banking depositors in total balance sheet sum,

A’vista stability — Stable demand deposits,

Liquidity stress test — strong combined stress test.

The purpose of the Scoring model is to assess liquidity risk by monitoring various indicators, and to
inform the Bank's Management Board about the assessment of current liquidity risks to which the
Bank is exposed. The output results of the Scoring model are then used as input data in the decision-
making process.

The aim of the Scoring model is to closely monitor the Bank's exposure to liquidity risk, by monitoring
various indicators that have an impact on the Bank's liquidity. The scoring model covers a wide range
of different indicators, taking into account both Bank-specific indicators as well as systemic
indicators, which have an impact on the Bank in a broader sense. The Scoring model provides a clear
input for further decision-making, as the Scoring model provides an assessment of the Bank's
liquidity risk, numerically, in the form of a number. This number corresponds to one of the five levels
of risk, which represent the levels of liquidity risk, and range from low to high liquidity risk. The
scoring model enables efficient monitoring of liquidity risk and assesses the current liquidity
situation of the Bank.

The indicators included in the Scoring model have been identified as key indicators for assessing the
Bank's liquidity risk.

The indicators in the Scoring model were selected based on the following criteria:

» Inclusion of indicators in Risk Appetite

Inclusion of indicators in the Policy

Regulatory requirements

Impact of indicators on liquidity

Monitoring frequency (monthly, in case of some calculations quarterly calculations)

In addition to the above Bank-specific indicators, the Scoring model includes several systemic risk
indicators, which fully cover the systemic risk that affects the bank'’s liquidity risk.

The scoring model gives the result (number) of risk levels, which represents an assessment of the
Bank's liquidity position.
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.6. Liquidity risk management (continued)

The liquidity risk assessment is described by the following risk levels:

1. Low liquidity risk 0% - 15%
2. Acceptable liquidity risk 15% - 30%
3. Moderate liquidity risk 30% - 45%
4. High liquidity risk 45% - 60%
5. Extremely high liquidity risk 60% - 100%

The Bank’s exposure to liquidity risk as of December 31, 2022, is at the very threshold between low
and acceptable level, because the result of a Scoring model is 19.23% (31 December 2021: 15.38%).

In case of exposure to high liquidity risk, the Bank would activate the Plan for liquidity in
unpredictable circumstances.

The following table details the Bank's remaining contractual maturities for financial assets and
liabilities. The table has been prepared on the basis of undiscounted cash flows of financial assets
and liabilities, including interest on those assets that will be earned, except for assets on which the
Bank expects cash flows to occur in another period.

December 31, 2022 Upto1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Total
month months months years years

Financial assets

Cash, cash equivalents and

mandatory reserve with CB 414,536 i i ) ) 414,536

Deposits with other banks - - - 461 - 461

Loans and receivables from

clients 79,015 109,078 272,197 436,784 247,813 1,144,887

Financial assets at fair value

through OSD 163,399 - 1 - - 163,400

Other financial assets according

to AC 3,846 - - - - 3,846

Total 660,796 109,078 272,108 437,245 247,813 1,727,130

Financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and other

financial organizations 12,140 50,245 19,222 29,538 - 111,145

Deposits from clients 904,481 20,488 146,629 172,192 695 1,253,485

Loans taken - 5,696 12,398 45,533 - 63,627

Subordinated debt 141 23 255 1,120 6,422 7,961

Other financial obligations

under AC 23,512 - - - - 23,512

Total o oE B 940,274 85,452 178,504 248,383 7,117 1,459,730

rl*ig)osure to liquidity risk, (279,478) 23,626 93,694 188,862 240,696 267,400
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.6. Liquidity risk management (continued)

December 31, 2021
(restated)

Financial assets

Cash, cash equivalents and
mandatory reserve with CB
Deposits with other banks
Loans and receivables from
clients

Financial assets at fair value
through OSD

Other financial assets according
to AC

Total

Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks and other
financial organizations
Deposits from clients

Loans taken

Subordinated debt

Other financial obligations under
AC

Total

Exposure to liquidity risk,
net

Upto1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Total
month months months years years
342,232 - - = S 342,232
= - - 434 = 434
76,429 115,792 228,004 386,439 180,013 986,677
152,634 2 5 2 = 152,643
3,772 - - - = 3,772
575,067 115,794 228,009 386,875 180,013 1,485,758
12,813 14,990 24,512 6,597 - 58,912
763,613 28,358 142,683 196,431 703 1,131788
- 2,076 8,961 14,211 - 25,248
57 8 178 1,121 6,701 8,065
22,366 - - = - 22,366
798,849 45,432 176,334 218,360 7,404 1,246,379
(223,782) 70,362 51,675 168,515 172,609 239,379
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)
4.7. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is defined as the price that the Bank would obtain to sell a financial asset or to pay for the
transfer of a liability in the ordinary course of business between market participants at the
measurement date (i.e., an exit price). This emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measure.
The standard assumes a fair value hierarchy where level 1 is the preferred method where available:

- Level 1 — quoted price for identical financial instruments, i.e. identical assets and liabilities
in active markets

- Level 2 — other visible inputs for assets or liabilities such as quoted prices in active markets
for similar assets or liabilities, or quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive
markets

- Level 3 —invisible input developed by the entity using the best available information that has
no market activity (or is negligible) for the asset or liability at the measurement date

4.7.1. Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Bank which are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis, from period to period

Debt securities and equity securities are carried in the Bank's balance sheet at fair value. The
reduction to fair value is performed at the end of each month, and the difference in value in relation
to the purchase value is recorded in the benefit / debit of capital.

As at 31 December 2022, all securities are classified as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) at credit risk level 1 (Stage 1) and serve as liquidity reserves.
Valuation is performed at fair value in accordance with IFRS. Valuation effects are presented in the
Statement of changes in equity within the item Other comprehensive income / loss (fair value
reserves). The total market value of securities, including accrued interest, amounts to BAM 163,399
thousand (31.12.2021: BAM 152,633 thousand).

The following table presents information on how the fair value of securities available for sale is
measured (valuation techniques and input data used, in particular).
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

. Fair value
Fair value as of hi
ierarchy
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Financial assets at fair value, which is measured through other
comprehensive income
¢  Republic of Slovenia (long-term e  Republic of Slovenia (short-term
bonds) - BAM 29,130 thousand treasury bills) BAM 23,408
e  Republic of France (short-term thousand
treasury bills) - BAM 11,670 thousand e  Republic of France (short-term
e  Kingdom of Belgium (short-term bonds) - BAM 15,664 thousand
treasury bills) - BAM 5,835 thousand e Kingdom of Belgium (short -term
e Kingdom of Belgium (long-term bonds) — BAM 13,702 thousand
bonds) - BAM 5,702 thousand e  Republic of Austria (short-term
e  Republic of Slovenia (long-term bonds) - BAM 10,765 thousand
treasury bills) - BAM 3,530 thousand e Kingdom of Belgium (long -term Level 1
e Kingdom of Belgium (long-term bonds) — BAM 8,896 thousand
treasury bills) - BAM 2,656 thousand e Kingdom of Finland (short -term
e  French Republic (long-term bonds) - bonds) — BAM 5,862 thousand
BAM 2,124 thousand e  Republic of Slovenia (short-term
o  United States (short-term treasury bonds) BAM 2,920 thousand
bills) - BAM 1,815 thousand e  Republic of France (long-term
bonds) — BAM 2,684 thousand
e  United States of America (long-
term bonds) BAM 1,726 thousand
Financial assets at fair value, which is measured through other
comprehensive income
e  Ministry of Finance FBIH (long-term
b().n('is) — BAM 31,307 thousand e  Ministry of Finance RS (long-term
o  Ministry of Finance RS (short-term bonds) — BAM 27,939 thousand
bonds) — BAM 27,321 thousand . . . .
P . e  Ministry of Finance FBiH long-
e  Ministry of Finance RS (long-term
bonds) — BAM 19,034 thousand term bonds) — BAM 26,188
. . - thousand
e  Ministry of Finance RS (short-term .. . }
bonds) — BAM 14,016 thousand e  Ministry of Finance FBiH long- Level 2

e  Ministry of Finance FBiH (short-term
treasury bills) — BAM 4,998 thousand

e  Ministry of Finance FBIH (short-term
bonds) — BAM 1,441 thousand

e  City Banja Luka (long-term bonds) —
BAM 738 thousand

term bonds) — BAM 10,988
thousand

City Banja Luka (long-term
bonds) — BAM 1,086 thousand
Canton Sarajevo (long-term
bonds) — BAM 721 thousand
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)
4.7. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

4.7.1. Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Bank which are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis, from period to period (continued)

: Fair value
Fair value as of .
hierarchy
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Equity instruments:
e SWIFT Belgium — BAM 85 e SWIFT Belgium — BAM 70
thousand thousand
e RVP FBiH — BAM 14 thousand e RVP FBiH — BAM 14 thousand Level 3

4.7.2. Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Bank which are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis , from period to period

The fair value of loans and deposits is calculated by different segments, products and residual
maturities. The calculations are based on the net value of the loan increased by future interest. All
future cash flows from principal and interest are discounted to present value.

When calculating fair value, the following criteria are taken into account:

1. The calculation is based on data from individual contracts.

Performing (loans of ABC creditworthiness clients) and non-performing (loans of DE
creditworthiness clients) are especially considered.

3. Segmentation ofloans and deposits (government, banks, financial organizations, companies,
and households) is taken into account.

4. The calculation of fair value shall consider the expected cash flows from loans and deposits,
from principal and interest, from depreciation plans, at the remaining maturity of each cash
flow, whereby the cash flow from each contract is reduced by the calculated value
adjustments and provisions, while accrued interest is not taken into account.

Future cash flows of loans and deposits are discounted at the market interest rate in accordance with
the net present value methodology, whereby the discount factor consists of the market curve and
spread for deposits and performing loans, i.e., the market curve and the discount factor of 20% for
non-performing loans.

Calculated fair value of financial instruments as at 31.12.2022. is presented below and has no impact
on the Bank's existing accounting records:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
EiTancial G55¢1s i?g_:::ﬁ; Bookvalue Fairvalue Bookvalue Fair value
Deposits with other
banks Level 3 4 396 434 418
Loans and receivables Level 3 1,012,946 1,006,504 879,262 974,862
Total 1,013,407 1,006,900 879,696 975,280
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks
and other financial 111,070 111,047 58,911 59,234
institutions Level 3
Deposits from clients Level 3 1,249,431 1,245,649 1,128,150 1,125,938
Loans taken Level 3 67,298 59,375 30,599 31,269

Total 1,427,799 1,416,071 1,217,660 1,216,441
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.8. Operational risk management

Operational risk management as an important part of the Bank’s business activities enables the Bank
to operate with its activities successfully and to preserve its reputation.

The Bank performs the following activities with regards to operational risk:

Permanent identification and risk assessment activities, the identification of all operational
risks in business activities in the Bank, in new processes, new products, as well as operating
risks related to hiring external suppliers,

Activities of regular re-identification on an annual basis, review of previously identified
operating risks,

Semi-annual reporting to the Operational risk management board on the maximum limit of
risk tolerance, important operational risks of categories A and B (with proposals for their
overcoming), as well as important damage events,

Annual calculation of the Bank’s risk profile and comparative overview with risk profile for the
previous year and reporting to NLB d.d. and the Operational risk management board,

Monthly data collection and reporting on negative events,

Quarterly reporting to the Banking Agency of FBiH,

Reporting to the Operational Risk Management Committee on the results of monitoring key risk
indicators,

Stress testing in the area of operational risk and reporting to the Operational Risk Management
Committee and the FBiH Banking Agency on the results.

In order to improve processes for operational risk management, the Bank performed the following
activities:

Regular activities related to adequate operational risk management for all processes, new
projects, outsourcing, and the development of new products, processes, and systems, as well
as projects being implemented,

Continuous activities on the identification of operational risks related to "cyber" crime,
inadequate software operations, risks of data incorrectly entered into the software, natural
disasters risks, risks of noncompliance with legislation, rules, regulations, agreements,
prescribed practices, ethical standards and other operational risks that have a little chance of
occurrence but may have a very high financial effect, or they represent a very high risk to the
reputation of the Bank, and other specific operational risks to which they would like to draw
attention,

Special emphasis on compliance risk (risk of loss due to legal sanctions), risk of conduet (risk
of loss due to deliberate deception of customers in the presentation of products and services,
and inadequate treatment of clients in resolving their complaints), risks arising from potential
adverse events occurred, and the risk of terrorist attacks,

Permanent support of audit recommendations in assessing the adequacy of system of controls
in certain business areas,

Preparation of analyses of operational risk within the most important business processes,
Establishing and monitoring of adequacy of formed provisions to cover operational risk in
accordance with the Federal Banking Agency regulations, and guidelines of the Group, with
the purpose of creating consolidated reports, and reporting to Bank authorities, the Operating
risks department, and NLB d.d. Ljubljana,

Holding meetings of the Operational risk management board on a monthly basis,

Continuous education of employees on processes of identification of operational risks and
reporting on recorded harmful events, potential harmful events and increasing awareness on
the presence of such risks in the working environment of all Bank employees,

Owners of operational risk processes have been appointed to identify significant / key /
systemic risks in individual processes, define specific measures for risk management and
centralized monitoring of implementation.

« BIA analysis was done, and DR test was ended
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.9. Capital risk management

In accordance with the Law on Banks of Federation of Bosnian and Herzegovina (Official gazette of
FBiH, number: 27/17), the minimum amount of the Bank's subscribed founding capital cannot be
less than BAM 15,000 thousand.

The aim of managing of the Bank's capital is to ensure and maintain the optimum volume, structure
and sources of capital, to enable:

Ensure all legal (regulatory) requirements,

Cover all risks assumed in the Bank's operations,

Continuous achievement of strategic goals of the Bank and

Achieving optimal return on equity to shareholders.

The Bank’s Management monitors capital adequacy indicators and other business indicators
monthly and reports on indicators’ actual values are delivered to the FBA quarterly in a prescribed
form.

The Bank, in accordance with the Decision on Calculating the Capital of the Bank (FBiH Official

Gazette, No. 81/17, 50/19, 37/20 and 81/20) (hereinafter: the Decision), must at all times meet the

following minimum capital requirements:

1. regular share capital rate of 7.50% (CET1 rate), as a ratio of ordinary share capital to total risk
exposure,

2. afixed capital rate of 9.75% (T1 rate), as a ratio of share capital to total risk exposure, and

3. a regulatory capital rate of 12.75%, as the ratio of regulatory capital to the total amount of risk
exposure.

According to this Decision, the regulatory capital of the Bank represents the sum of core and

additional capital, after regulatory adjustments:

1. Core Bank capital (Tier 1) represents sum of regular core capital items (CET 1) after regulatory
adjustments and additional core capital items (AT1) after regulatory adjustments.

2. Additional capital of Bank (Tier 2) is the sum of capital instruments, subordinated debts, and
other items of additional capital after deduction for regulatory compliance, which cannot be
more than one-third of the core capital.
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.9. Capital risk management (continued)

The Bank calculates total risk exposure as a sum of the following item:

- Exposure weighted with risk for credit risk,

— Capital requirements relating to market risks (foreign exchange risk, settlement risk, commodity
risk) and

- Capital requirements for operational risk.

When calculating the total amount of risk exposure, the Bank multiplies capital requirements relating
to market risks and operational risk with 8.33.

Also, the Bank must maintain a conservation buffer of capital in the form of regular core capital in
the amount of 2.5% of the total amount of risk exposure. The capital conservation buffer represents
a part of the ordinary core capital above the prescribed minimum of 6.75% of the total amount of risk
exposure and cannot be used to maintain the rate of the core and the total capital rate.

The FBA may determine the rate of capital buffer for a systemically important bank in the amount of
0% to 2% of the total amount of exposure to risk.

The requirement for a combined equity conservation buffer is core capital (expressed as a percentage
of the total amount of risk exposure), which is intended to meet the requirements for a capital
conservation buffer, plus the following conservation buffers, depending on what is applicable:

1. Countercyclical buffer specific for the bank

2, Buffer for a systemically important bank and

3. Systemic risk buffer.
The application of Countercyclical buffer specific for the bank, buffer for a systemically important
bank and systemic risk buffer are not prescribed yet.

Since the beginning of the application of the Decision on the calculation of Bank capital, the Bank
maintains a regulatory capital rate above the required minimum of 12% and fulfills requirement for
maintenance of capital conservation buffer of 2.5%, as well as an additional requirement for Risk
Appetite of the Bank of 0.5%.

The following table presents regulatory capital items, amount of exposure to risk, and capital ratios
in accordance with the Decision as of December 31, 2022:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Regulatory capital of the Bank 157,287 146,646
Exposure weighted with credit risk 890,927 794,967
Risk exposure for valuation risk - 13,994
Risk exposure for operational risk 63,634 61,309
Total risk exposure 954,561 870,270
Regular core capital ratio 15.86% 16.17%
Core capital ratio 15.86% 16.17%
Regulatory capital ratio 16.48% 16.85%
Regular Core Capital Rate including adjustments
from Tier 2 7.50% 8.58%
Core capital rate including adjustments from Tier
2 9.75% 11.44%
Regulatory capital rate including adjustments
from Tier 2 12.75% 15.25%
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4. Bank's financial risk management (continued)

4.9. Capital risk management (continued)

The ICAAP is an important part of capital planning. ICAAP defines a set of restrictions for different
types of risks (all relevant types of risks to which the Bank may be exposed, not only materially the
largest), in terms of their consumption of capital under normal and stressful conditions.

ICAAP's most important goal at the Bank is to ensure adequate capital and sustainability in every
moment. The purpose of the ICAAP process is for the Bank to have in place sound, effective and
comprehensive strategies and processes for assessing and maintaining current amounts, types and
allocation of internal capital that are considered adequate to cover the nature and level of risk to
which the Bank may or may be exposed. ICAAP plays a key role in maintaining the continuity of the
Bank's operations by ensuring its adequate capitalization.

An economic perspective gives a very comprehensive view of risks. From an economic perspective,
the goal is to provide the capital needed internally for the risks that could cause economic loss, based
on current quantification and using very high levels of reliability to estimate unexpected losses. Some
of these risks, or the risks associated with them, can be partially or fully materialized later under a
normative perspective through the adverse impact on the income statement that results in a decrease
in equity. Therefore, the Bank is expected to evaluate in a regulatory perspective the extent to which
risks identified and quantified in the economic perspective could affect equity and the total amount
of risk exposure in the future.

The Normative Perspective (Baseline Scenario) is a five-year assessment of the Bank that
demonstrates its ability to meet all regulatory requirements related to equity and the Bank's Risk
Appetite. Within these capital constraints, the Bank defines its risk layers in Risk Appetite above
regulatory minimums and internal capital requirements that enable it to sustainably monitor its
business strategy.

The Normative perspective (adverse stress scenario) includes the results of the stress tests
performed. In a perspective that includes stress scenarios, the Bank seeks to meet the capital
adequacy ratio, including three-year projections of adverse developments that imply the Bank's
exhaustion of capital.

During 2022, the Bank continuously maintained capital ratios above the prescribed regulatory /
supervisory minimums and in accordance with internally defined limits, which indicates the ability
to meet all regulatory and supervisory requirements related to capital adequacy.

Data presented on December 31, 2022, at the time of preparation of these reports have not yet been
audited given that the regulatory audit deadline is May 31, 2023.
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5. Net Interest Income and similar income

a. Interest Income calculated using the effective interest rate

2022 2021
Loans measured at amortized cost 41,872 38,566
Financial assets at FVOCI 140 8
Other interest and similar income 197 123
Interest Income 42,209 38,697
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 2,898 2,256
Total income from interest and similar income at
effective interest rate 45,107 40,953
b. Interest Expense and similar expenses at
effective interest rate

2022 2021
Deposits 3,192 3:333
Loan liabilities 888 544
Subordinated debt 280 265
Discount amount of provision under IAS 19 32 41
Other interest expenses 2,539 2,081
Interest Expense 6,031 6,264
Net Interest Income and similar income at effective
interest rate 38,176 34,689
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6. Nel fee and commission income

a. Fee and commission income

Income from domestic and international payment
transactions

Income from guarantees and letters of credit
Income from other activities

Fee and commission income

b. Fee and commission expense

Payment transactions and other banking services expenses
Deposit insurance expenses

Fee and commission expense

Net fees and commission income

2022 2021
25,995 22,462
1,476 1,318
5,475 4,149
32,946 27,929
2022 2021
1,133 1,022
8,330 7,314
9,463 8,336
23,483 19,593

The Bank did not disclose the value of any open performance obligations at 31 December 2022, as its
contracts with clients generally have a fixed term that is less than one year, an open term with a

cancellation period that is less than one year.

7. Impairment losses and provisions

2022 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Net credit losses from financial assets at
amortised cost (8,217) (1,631) (1,117) (5,965) (3,516)
Net credit losses from financial assets at fair
value through PL (216) - - (216) (9)
Allowance for general credit risk and
potential credit losses (net) (Note 24b) (1,035) (200) (45) (1,280) 154
Net provisions / Provision for court disputes
(Note 24b) 619 - - 619 (104)
Other provisions / net earlier admitted
provisions (634) - - (634) 409
(4,483) (1,831) (1,162)  (7,476) _ (3,066)

During 2022, impairment losses were significantly reduced compared to 2021. The most significant
changes, which reduced the level of expected credit losses, relate to the application of more
favourable risk parameters, recovery of the portfolio and release of impairment from out-of-court
settlement, as well as the lack of impact of the first application of the Decision on Credit Risk
Management and Determination of Expected Credit Losses of the Banking Agency of FBiH.
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8. Other gains and (losses) from financial assets

2022, 2021,
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Net effects of value changes of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss 45 - - 45 -
Other gains from financial assets 151 - - 151 146
196 - - 196 146
9. Foreign exchange gains
2022 2021
Fee income from foreign exchange transactions 1,037 1,167
Fee expense from foreign exchange transactions (153) (408)
884 759
Foreign exchange differences, net 26 (11)
910 748
10. Other gains and (losses) from long term non financial assets
2022, 2021,
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Ukupno
Net gains and (losses) from property, plant
and equipment 33 - - 33 (23)
Net gains and (losses) from rights of use
assets 46 - B 46 29
Net gains and (losses) from long term
assets meant to sales - - 732 732 139
Other gains from earlier acknowledged
from value impairment of long term non-
financial assets 465 - - 465 410
544 Z 732 1,276 555
11. Other income
2022 2021
Income from recovered written off receivables 4,908 2,976
Income from lease 208 101
Subsequently determined interest and fee income 105 336
Income from credits, measured at FV through profit and
loss - 1,515
Other revenues 77 26
5,298 4,954
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12. Employees’ expenses

2022 2021

Net salaries 9,585 8,957
Taxes and contributions 6,167 5,714
Meal and transport 1,355 1,154
Holiday allowance 905 853
Other 938 455
18,950 17,133

The average number of employees by calculated hours in 2022 was 437 (2021: 432).

13. Other expenses and costs

2022 2021

Deposits insurance expenses 2,440 2,383
Maintenance 2,349 2,210
Postal and telecommunications services cost 1,369 1,372
Marketing costs 1,234 1,033
Services 1,223 1,140
Security costs 1,222 1,193
Fees to FBA 929 808
Utilities 703 692
Office supplies and small inventory 635 523
Rent 586 561
Insurance of property and users of banking cards 380 403
Legal expenses and other administrative expenses 241 215
Cleaning costs 202 209
Management fee 77 21
Other employees’ expenses 551 446
14,141 13,209

14. Income tax

Total tax recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income can be
presented as follows:

2022 2021

Income tax for the year 2,554 2,566
Deferred tax (690) (605)
1,864 1,961
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14. Income tax (continued)

Reconciliation of the income tax presented in the tax balance and the accounting income tax can be
presented as follows:

2022 2021
Profit before tax 23,984 23,018
Income tax at the statutory rate of 10% 2,398 2,302
Capital gains/losses 0 7,191
Non-taxable income (970) (1,782)
Effect of non-deductible expenses 161 180
Temporary tax differences 7,214 352
Tax reliefs A (4,852) (3,295)
Tax base 25,537 25,664
Income tax expense 2,554 2,566
Effective income tax rate for the year 10.65% 11.15%
14.a Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Movement in deferred tax assets
2022 2021
Balance at December 31, previous year 93 152
Deferred tax assets-other provisions 54 (24)
Deferred tax assets-stage 1 and 2 impairment allowances 630 (92)
Deferred tax assets-impairment of other assets 5 3
Deferred tax assets-debt securities 225 54
Balance at December 31 1,007 93
Movement in deferred tax liabilities
2022 2021
Balance at December 31, previous year - 823
Deferred tax liabilities-equity securities 6 (719)
Deferred tax liabilities-debt securities - (104)
Balance at December 31 6 -
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14. Income tax (continued)

14.a Deferred tax assets and liabilities (continued)

Deferred tax (tax assets or tax liabilities) is recognized for the difference between the carrying amount
for tax purposes and the carrying amount for the following items:

Net deferred
Deferred tax Deferred tax tax assets /
assets liabilities (liabilities)
Balance at 31,12,2020 152 (823) (671)
Change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income 54 823 877
Other provisions for loans and receivables
from clients through profit or loss (24) - (24)
Gain-deferred tax assets IV Stage 1 and 2 (92) - (92)
Changes in negative fair value of property
and equipment recognized in profit or loss 3 - 3
Balance at 31,12,2021 93 - 93
Change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income - - -
Other provisions for loans and receivables
from clients through profit or loss 54 - 54
Gain-deferred tax assets Stage 1 and 2 630 - 630
Changes in negative fair value of property
and equipment recognized in profit or loss 5 - 5
Deferred tax assets — debt 225 - 225
6
Deferred tax liabilities — owner’s - (6)
Balance at 31,12,2022 1,007 6 1,001

15. Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021

Cash in hand 59,041 53,675

Balances with banks with maturity until 30 days 48,639 58,906
Liquidity reserves above the required reserve at the Central

Bank 166,627 112,992

Calculated interest on assets at banks 7 11

274,314 225,584

Less: Value adjustment (225) (200)

274,089 225,384

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and balances on accounts with the Central Bank of
BiH, and cash on accounts with other banks without placements to banks with maturity more than
30 days.
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15. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

The table below presents the gross exposure of the Bank in a form of placements with banks according
to the internal rating system (internal classification) and by the level of credit risk (stage
classification) at the end of the year:

Gross exposure on 31.12.2022
31.12,2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total =0t
- - 225,584
Cash and cash eqvivalents 274,314 274,314
274,314 - - 274,314 225,584
Imapairment on 31,12,2022 SLIZ:2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 2021
Cash and cash eqvivalents 225 . . 225 =00

225 - - 225 200
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16. Financial assets at fair value through PL

The Bank classifies financial assets according to IFRS g as financial assets measured at fair value

through other totals.
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
16.a Investment in equity instruments
S.W.LF.T., Belgium 85 70
Register of securities of the Federation of Bosnia and
Herzegovina, Sarajevo 14 14
99 84
31,12,2022 31,12,2021
16.b Debt securities
Republic of Srpska — Ministry of finance 60,371 27,939
Government F BiH — Federal Ministry of finance 37,746 37,176
Ministry of finance of Republic of Slovenia 32,660 26,328
Kingdom of Belgium 14,193 22,598
Republic of France 13,794 18,348
Switzerland 1,983 -
United States of America 1,815 1,726
City of Banja Luka 738 1,086
Republic of Austria - 10,765
Republic of Finland - 5,862
Canton Sarajevo - 721
163,300 152,549

The bank had no dividend income in 2022.
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16. Financial assets at fair value through PL (continued)
The table below shows the Bank's gross exposure in the form of financial instruments at fair value
through other total scoring according to the internal prudential system (internal classification) and
the level of credit risk (stage classification) at the end of the year:

31 December

gy Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Individually Group Individually Group Individually Group Total
rated rated rated rated rated rated
Internal
classification
A = 64,543 - - = = 64,543
B - 98,856 - - - - 98,856
C - - - - - - -
DiE - - - - - - -
- 163,399 = - - - 163,399
B1LDeoemher Stage 1 Sta St
2022 8 8¢ 2 age3 Total
Individually Group Individually Group Individually Group
rated rated rated rated rated rated
Internal
classification
A - 85,711 - - - - 85,711
B - 66,922 - - - - 66,922
C = = = 2 - z =
DiE E - - - - - -
- 152,633 - ” - - 152,633

Change in gross carrying amount value and related value adjustment for financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income in 2022 are shown below:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Total

Individuall; G Individuall G - G

T cated rated  rated rated  Individually rated rated
Fair value at 31
December 2022 - 152,633 = = - s 152,633
New assets approved or
purchased h 117,106 B B - B 117,106
Asset
derecognition/maturity - (102,734) - - - - (102,734)
(excluding write-offs)
Changes in fair
value = (3,606) - = - = (3,606)
Transfer in Stage 1 - - - B - E -
Transfer in Stage 2 - E - - - - -
Transfer in Stage 3 - B = = = - =
As at 31 December } _ ) B} i
2022 163,399 163,399
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16. Financial assets at fair value through PL (continued)

Value adjustments as of
31 December 2021

New assets approved or
purchased

Asset derecognition/maturity
(excluding write-offs)

Transfer in Stage 1
Transfer in Stage 2
Transfer in Stage 3
Changesduetonon-
recognition modifications
Changes in

models/parameters for credit
risk assessment

Improvements

Change in fair value

Write offs
Exchange rate differences

As at 31 December 2022

Value adjustiments as of
31 December 2020

New assets approved or
purchased

Asset derecognition/maturity
(excluding write-offs))

Transfer u Stage 1
Transfer u Stage 2
Transfer u Stage 3

Changes due to non-
recognition modifications
Changes in
models/parameters for credit
risk assessment

Improvements
Change in fair value

Write offs
Exchange rate differences

As at 31 December 2022

Stage 1

Individually
rated

Stage 1

Individually
rated

Group
rated

668
583

(285)

(88)

878

Group
rated

663
174

(90)

(79)

668

Stage 2

Individually
rated

Stage 2

Individually
rated

Group
rated

Group
rated

Stage 3

Individually
rated

Stage 3

Individually
rated

Group
rated

Group
rated

Total

668

583

(285)

(88)

878

Total

663
174

(90)

(79)

668

115



NLB BANKA d.d., SARAJEVO
Notes to Financial Statements - December 31, 2022

(All amounts are given in thousand BAM unless otherwise stated)
16. Financial assets at fair value through PL (continued)

Equity instruments at fair value through other total result:

Structure of equity Activities Country of % of % of
investments business ownership Ownership
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
The Association of Activities of other Bosnia and
Banks of Bosnia and membership H . 4.35 4.35
Herzegovina organization, erzegovina
g ganizations
Register of Securities of Registration and Bosnia and
: maintenance of . 0.687 0.687
FBiH B Herzegovina
securities data
S.W.LFE.T. Payment transactions Belgium 0.0055 0.0055
A review of hard papers at the level of evaluation on the day 31. December 2022.:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Debt securities 64,445 98,855 - 163,300
Equity instruments % B 99 99
Total 64,445 98,855 99 163,399
Overwiev of securities by the level of valuation as of 31. December 2021:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Debt securities 85,627 66,922 - 152,549
Equity instruments - - 84 84
Total 85,627 66,922 84 152,633

The portfolio of debt securities in level 1 consists of bonds and treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance
of the Republic of Slovenia in the amount of BAM 32,660 thousand, the Kingdom of Belgium in the
amount of BAM 14,193 thousand, the Republic of France in the amount of BAM 13,794 thousand,
Switzerland in the amount of BAM 1,983 thousand and the United States of America in the amount

of BAM 1,815 thousand.

The level 2 portfolio consists of long-term bonds and treasury bills of the RS Ministry of Finance in
the amount of BAM 60,371 thousand, the Ministry of Finance of the FBiH in the amount of BAM

37,746 thousand, the City of Banja Luka in the amount of BAM 738 thousand.

Equity instruments are included in Level 3.
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17. Financial assets at amortized cost

17.a Reserve with the central bank of BiH

The reserve requirement is the minimum amount that must be deposited with the Central Bank of
Bosnia and Herzegovina. According to the Law on the Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina, as of
July 1, 2016, the reserve requirement represents 10% of the average ten-day deposits and borrowed
funds, regardless of which currency the funds are expressed in. The reserve requirement is
maintained through average account balances with the Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina.

31.12.2022 31.12.2021

Obligatory reserve at Central Bank BiH 140,588 116,965
Less: Impairment (141) (117)
140,447 116,848

Central bank in the bank's reserve account in the accounting period:

on the amount of the reserve required on the basis of the base in domestic currency (KM) —
does not charge a fee,

on funds of compulsory reserves based on the base in foreign currencies and in domestic
currency with a currency clause — charges a fee at the rate applied by the European Central
Bank on deposits of commercial banks (Deposit Facility Rate) reduced by 10 basis points,
on the amount of funds above the reserve requirement — calculates a fee at the rate applied
by the European Central Bank on deposits of commercial banks (Deposit Facility Rate)
minus 25 basis points.

The Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina (CBBH) has adopted a Decision amending the Decision
on determining and maintaining reserve mandatory and determining the fee on the amount of
reserves, with the aim of aligning with the policy of the European Central Bank (ECB) and mitigating
the impact of the growth of the ECB's reference interest rate on the operations of banks in BiH. The
decision entered into force on January 1, 2023.

The Central Bank of BiH, based on this decision, will in the coming period:

calculate and pay compensation at the rate of 25 basis points on the amount of the required
reserve based on the base in domestic currency (KM),

calculate and pay compensation at the rate of 10 basis reserves on the basis of foreign
currencies and in domestic currency with a currency clause and pay compensation at the rate
of 10 basis points; and

will not charge compensation on funds above the required reserve.
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17. Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

17.a Reserve with the CB of BiH

The tables below show the Bank's gross exposure in the form of a mandatory reserve with the CBBH,
and the calculated impairment according to the levels of credit risk (stage classification) at the end

of the year:

Gross exposure to
31.12,2022

Obligatotiry reserve with the CB of
BiH

Gross exposure to
31.12.2022

Obligatory reserve with the CB
of BiH

Impairment on 31. december
2022

Obligatory reserve with the CB of
BiH

17.b Deposits with other banks

Deposits with other banks
Less: Impairment

31.12.2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 2021.
140,588 = - 140,588 116,965

140,588 - - 140,588 116,965
31.12.2022
A B C D E Total =D2L.
140,588 z - - 140,588 116,965
- 140,588 - - - 140,588 116,965
31.12.202
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 2021.
141 - - 141 &7
141 - - 141 117
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
462 434
(1 =
461 434

The tables below show the Bank's gross exposure in the form of deposits with other banks, and the
calculated impairment according to credit risk levels (stage classification) at the end of the year:

Gross exposure on 31.12.2022
31.12.2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 2021
Deposits with other banks 462 - - 462 434
462 - = 462 434
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17. Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

17.b Deposits with other banks

Gross exposure on 31.12.2022
31.12.2022
A B C D E Total 2021
Deposits with other banks 462 = - ) 3 462 434
462 5 = = B 462 434
Impairment on 31. december 31.12.2022
2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 2021
Deposits with other banks 1 B - 1 i
1 - - 1 -
17.c Loans and trade receivables
Short-term loans on Long-term loans on Total on 31.12.
31.12. 31.12.
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Retail loans 31,119 29,594 573,890 481,552 605,009 511,146
Corporate loans 258,432 239,579 190,090 168,261 448,522 407,840
o 289,551 269,173 763,980 649,813 1,053.531 918,986
Less: impairment (9,800) (8,647) (30,785)  (31,077) (40,585)  (39,724)
279,751 260,526 733,195 618,736 1,012.946 879,262
The table below shows the Bank's gross exposure in the form of loans to clients according to the
internal credit rating system (internal classification) and according to credit risk levels (phase
classification) at the end of the year:
31.12,2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Individuall Group Individual Group Individuall Group
y rated rated ly rated rated y rated rated
Internal
classifications-
cation
A = 619,964 = 3,517 = = 623,481
B - 350,304 - 10,638 - 360,942
C - 34,787 - 7,214 * “ 42,001
DiE - - - - 10,079 17,028 27,107
- 1,005.055 - 21,369 10,079 17,028 1,053.531
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17. Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

17.c Loans and trade receivables (continued)

31.12.2021
Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
. e Individu
Individuall Group Individuall Group rated ally Group
y rated rated y rated rated
rated
Internal
classifications-
cation
A - 523,679 - 6,832 - - 530,511
B . 304,551 . 12,578 . = 317,129
C - 16,906 - 23,070 - 39,976
DiE - - - - 10,165 21,205 31,370
= 845,136 - 42,480 10,165 21,205 918,986

The movement of loan impairment in 2022 and 2021 is shown in the following table:

2022
January 1 39,724
Increase in impairment for the year 27,865
Decrease in impairment (22,212)
Increase by year, net 5,653
Decrease in impairment based on unwinding (17
Net cost of interest impairment 56
Accounting write-offs during the year (4,738)
Permanent write-off (93)
December 31 40,585

2021

42,571
37,380
(34,086)
3,294
(42)

144
(3,626)
(2,617)
39,724

Below is an overview of loans given to customers by segments and by credit risk levels as of

December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021:
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17. Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

17.c. Loans and trade receivables (continued)

31.12,2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective Total
assessment nent sment assessment assessment assessment
Retail loans

Housing loans - 133,022 - 1,192 74 792 135,080
Consumer loans = 416,027 ‘ 6,823 61 15,454 438,365
Other retail loans - 30,518 2 391 5 650 31,564
- 579,567 = 8,406 140 16,896 605,009

Corporate loans
Corporate clients - 375,521 - 10,854 5,311 = 391,686
SME clients = 34,030 = 1,755 4,527 = 40,312
Other clients - 15,937 - 354 101 132 16,524
- 425,488 - 12,963 9,939 132 448,522
= 1,005,055 - 21,369 10,079 17,028 1,053,531
Less: Impairment - (12,820) - (2,794) (9,215) (15,756) (40,585)
Total loans (net) = 992,235 - 18,575 864 1,272 1,012,946

31.12.2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective Totl
Retail loans

Housing loans = 102,280 = 1,519 177 1,031 105,007
Consumer loans - 346,343 = 11,098 152 18,933 376,526
Other retail loans - 28,095 - 630 22 866 29,613
- 476,718 - 13,247 351 20,830 511,146

Corporate loans
Corporate clients - 325,612 = 22,171 5,288 - 353,071
SME clients z 28,369 o 4,774 4,526 31 37,700
Other clients - 14,437 - 2,289 - 343 17,069
- 368,418 - 29,234 9,814 374 407,840
- 845,136 - 42,481 10,165 21,204 918,986
Less: Impairment . (6,640) - (3,812) (9,370) (19,902) (39,724)
Total loans (net) - 838,496 - 38,669 795 1,302 879,262
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17. Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

17. Loans and trade receivables (continued)

Changes in the gross carrying amount and the related value adjustments for retail loans in 2022 are,

as follows:

Gross carrying
amount as at
December 31,
2021

New assets
originated or
purchased

Assets derecognized
or matured
(excluding write-
offs)

Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Changes to
contractual cash
flows due to
modification not
resulting in
derecognition
Accounting write-off

Write-offs

At December 31,
2022

ECL Allowance as
at December 31,
2021

New assets
originated or
purchased

Assets derecognized
or matured
(excluding write-
offs)

Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Changes to
contractual cash
flows due to
modification not
resulting in de-
recognition
Accounting write-off
Write-offs

At December 31,
2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Individually  Collective Individually Collectiv Individu Collective
rated rated rated erated ally rated rated

476,718 13,247 351 20,830 511,146

241,604 - 1,543 - 468 243,615

(81,246) - (11,518) (168) (1,300) (94,232)

- (65,225) - 4,838 - 2,695 (57,692)

} 6,671 - (287 1,427 7,811

) 1,055 - 583 (19) (2,938) (1,319)

(9) - - (24) - (33)

- = - - # (4,194) (4,194)

= - = (93) (93)

"~ 579,568 - 8,406 140 16,895 605,009

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Individually Collectiv  Individually Collective Individu Collectiv
rated e rated rated rated ally rated e rated

- 3,705 = 2,009 307 19,528 25,549

= 3,547 < 249 = 327 4,123

= (628) - (1,705) (140) (1,002) (3,475)

- 781 - 887 - 2,141 3,809

- 8o - (87) - 1,269 1,262

- 11 - 104 = (2,352) (2,237)

- - - - - (4,194) (4,194)

- - - - (93) (93)

=, 7’496 - 1,457 167 155624 24,744
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17. Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

17.¢c. Loans and trade receivables (continued)

Gross carrying amount as
at December 31, 2020

New assets originated or
purchased

Assets derecognized or matured
(excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2.

Transfers to Stage 3

Changes to contractual cash
flows due to modification not
resulting in derecognition

Accounting write-off

Write-offs

At December 31, 2021

ECL Allowance as at
December 31, 2020

New assets originated or
purchased

Assets derecognized or matured
(excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Changes to contractual cash
flows due to modification not
resulting in de-recognition
Accounting write-off

Write-offs

At December 31, 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective

- 426,417 - 7,019 326 23,677 457,439

- 185,671 - 1,728 - 116 187,515

= (68,491) - (1,010) (1,201) (70,702)

- (71,484) - 10,138 123 3,702 (57,521)

- 2,677 - (5,044) 1,656 (711)

- 1,927 - 369 (98) (4,383) (2,185)

= - » 47 - 154 201

. z = - - (2,686) (2,686)

= = - - (204) (204)

- 476,717 - 13,247 351 20,831 511,146
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective

- 2,763 - 1,153 202 21,423 25,541

= 1,534 5 299 87 1,920

- (422) - (140) = (1,073) (1,635)

- (200) - 1,541 - 2,984 4,325

- 17 - (892) - 1,495 620

= 13 - 46 105 (2,643)  (2,479)

- - - 2 - 145 147

_ - 5 5 - (2,686)  (2,686)

- - - - - (204) (204)

- 3,705 - 2,009 307 19,528 25,549
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17. Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

17.c. Loans and trade receivables (continued)

Changes in the gross carrying amount and the related value adjustments for corporate loans in 2022

are, as follows:

Gross carrying amount as
at December 31, 2021

New assets originated or
purchased ’

Assets derecognized or matured
(excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Changes to contractual cash
flows due to modification not
resulting in de-recognition
Accounting write-off

Write-offs

At December 31, 2022

ECL Allowance as at
December 31, 2021

New assets originated or
purchased

Assets derecognized or matured
(excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Changes to contractual cash
flows due to modification not
resulting in derecognition

Accounting write-off
Write-offs

At December 31, 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective
y rated rated rated rated rated rated

- 368,418 - 20,234 9,814 374 407,840

- 333,181 - 6,101 542 - 339,824

- (206,488) - (23,963) (249) 169 (230,531)

- (72,435) # 3,664 - 17 (68,754)

= 2,944 - (2,071) - 38 911

- 2 - 1 74) (34) (107)

- (132) - (3) 18 . (117)

- - Z o (112) (432) (544)

- 425,488 - 12,963 9,939 132 448,522
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective
y rated rated rated rated rated rated

- 2,935 = 1,803 9,063 374 14,175

Z 4,183 - 746 224 - 5,153

- (1,411) - (1,285) (251) 169  (2,778)

5 (421) - 304 - 17 (100)

= 40 - (231) & 38 (153)

- - - - 122 (34 88

- 5 - - (112) (432) (544)

- 5,326 - 1,337 9,046 132 15,841
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17. Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

17.c. Loans and trade receivables (continued)

Gross carrying amount as
at December 31, 2019

New assets originated or
purchased

Assets derecognized or matured
(excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Changes to contractual cash
flows due to modification not
resulting in de-recognition

Accounting write-offs

Write-offs

At December 31, 2021

ECL allowance as at
December 31, 2019

New assets originated or
purchased

Assets derecognized or matured
(excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Changes to contractual cash
flows due to modification not
resulting in derecognition

Accounting write-offs
Write-offs

At December 31, 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective
yrated rated rated rated rated rated

- 302,301 - 43,999 9,411 562 356,273

- 273,982 - 21,523 267 23 295,795

- (175,159) - (26,818) 449 140  (201,388)

- (40,583) = 4,472 - 2 (36,109)

= 7,877 - (13,314) 2,167 29 (3,241)

- - - - - (110) (110)

- . = 575 (652) 50 (27)

- - * = (779) (161) (940)

- - - (1.203) (1.049) (161) (2.413)

- 368,418 - 29,234 9,814 374 407,840
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective
y rated rated rated rated rated rated

= 3,469 a 6,931 6’070 560 17,030

- 2,045 2 1,131 241 23 3,440

- (1,565) - (3,933) 680 132 (4,686)

- (1,199) - 321 - 3 (875)

- 185 . (1,598) 1,849 77 513

- - - 511 (99) 412

- - = 154 1,540 - 1,694

- - = = (779) (161) (940)

= - - (1.203) (1.049) (161)  (2.413)

- 2.935 - 1.803 9.063 374 14.175
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17. Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

17.c. Loans and trade receivables (continued)

Trade receivables — Stage 1

At December 31, Notdue Dueinlessthan illl);f- o 0‘2:‘; o Eioidl
2022 30 days 60 days 9o days days
Housing loans 131,349 1,673 - - - 133,022
Consumer loans 396,452 19,564 - - . 416,027
Other retail loans 28,767 1,750 - - l 30,518
Total Retail loans 556,568 22,987 - B b 579,567
Corporate lending 371,224 4,289 = = 8 375,521
SME lending 33,901 129 = = " 34,030
Other loans 15,010 927 E = T 15,937
Total Corporate loans 420,135 5,345 = ® 8 425,488
Total Loans to customers 976,703 28,332 ) . == 1,005,055 _
of which: restructured B - - E E -
. . Due Due Due
At December 31, 2021 Notdue Due :;2 l;:;sthan méz’l " in 31 -90 o;'(e)r Total
days ays days
Housing loans 100,540 1,740 - - - 102,280
Consumer loans 328,513 17,812 - 6 12 346,343
Other retail loans 26,683 1,409 - 1 2 28,095
Total Retail loans 455,736 20,961 - 7 14 476,718
Corporate lending 325,387 224 - - - 325,611
SME lending 28,369 - - - - 28,369
Other loans 14,241 190 - - 14,438
Total Corporate loans 367,997 414 - - 7 368,418
Total Loans to customers 823,733 21,375 - Vi 21 845,136

of which: restructured

By methodology for group impairment and provisions calculation in NLB Banka d.d., Sarajevo
defines the levels of material overdue for corporate and retail, which will result in clients being
transferred to Stage 2. Accordingly, Stage 1 contains clients overdue for 30 days, but their delay is
not materially significant to be transferred to Stage 2.
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17. Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

17.c. Loans and trade receivables (continued)

Trade receivables — Stage 2

Due 20 Due Due Due
At December 31, 2022 Not due d 3 31-60 61-90 over 90 Total
ays

days days days
Housing loans 956 200 24 12 - 1,192
Consumer loans 3,216 1,850 1,057 700 - 6,823
Other retail loans 192 70 78 51 - 391
Total Retail loans 4,364 2,120 1,159 763 - 8,406
Corporate lending 10,182 570 = 102 - 10,854
SME lending 1,755 = - « - 1,755
Other loans 208 88 58 - - 354
Total Corporate loans 12,145 658 58 102 : 12,963
Total Loans to customers 16,509 2,778 1,217 865 - 21,369
* 512 - - - 512

of which: restructured

127



NLB BANKA d.d., SARAJEVO
Notes to Financial Statements - December 31, 2022

(All amounts are given in thousand BAM unless otherwise stated)

17. Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

17.¢c. Loans and trade receivables (continued)

Due 20 Due Due Due
At December 31, 2021 Not due da :: 31-60 61-90 over 90 Total

Y days days days
Housing loans 1,126 136 258 - - 1,520
Consumer loans 6,408 2,089 1,606 995 = 11,098
Other retail loans 366, 11 104 48 - 629
Total Retail loans 7,900 2,336 1,968 1,043 - 13,247
Corporate lending 21,998 173 = - - 22,171
SME lending 3,630 1,144 # - - 4,774
Other loans 2,175 109 - 5 - 2,289
Total Corporate loans 27,803 1,426 = 5 = 29,234
Total Loans to customers 35,703 3,762 1,968 1,048 - 42,481
of which: restructured 636 29 - = = 665
Due from banks - - - = = =

Trade receivables — Stage 3
Due 20 Due Due Due
At December 31, 2022 Not due d 3 31-60 61-90 over 90 Total
s d d d

ays ays ays
Housing loans 176 132 1 - 557 866
Consumer loans 2,253 665 54 159 12,384 15,515
Other retail loans 8 1 C 3 643 655
Total Retail loans 2,437 798 55 162 13,584 17,036
Corporate lending - 171 = 270 4,870 5,311
SME lending - - = = 4,527 4,527
Other loans 40 " = = 193 233
Total Corporate loans 40 171 . 270 9,590 10,071
Total Loans to customers 2,477 969 55 432 23,174 27,107
120 " - - 3,410 3,530

of which: restructured
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17. Financial assets at amortized cost (continued)

17.c. Loans and trade receivables (continued)

Due 20 Due Due Due
At December 31, 2021 Not due 3 31-60 61-90 over 90 Total
days
days days days
Housing loans 154 153 - 16 885 1,208
Consumer loans 2,482 899 256 145 15,303 19,085
Other retail loans 4 6 1 K 878 889
Total Retail loans 2,640 1,058 257 161 17,066 21,182
Corporate lending - : 3 = 5,288 5,288
SME lending = - 267 E 4,290 4,557
Other loans 70 ) - 5 273 343
Total Corporate loans 70 = 267 = 9,851 10,188
Total Loans to customers 2,710 1,058 524 161 26,917 31,370
of which: restructured 30 g = 23 3,568 3,621
Due from banks - - B - - -
17.d Other financial assets at amortized cost
31.12.2022 31.12.2021

Other financial assets at amortized cost
Calculated service fees 508 460
Receivables from the card transactions 3,194 3,171
Other financial assets 698 630

4,400 4,261
Less: Impairment (554) (489)
Other financial assets at amortized cost 3,846 3,772
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18. Property, plant and equipment
18.a. Property, plant and equipment

Plant and Vehicle Computer Other Assets in Total
equipment s equipment equipment progress

Cost
At 1 January 2021, 36,370 1,080 8,595 4,976 1,535 52,556
Additions - - - - 2,263 2,263
Transfer 142 - 1,805 800 (2,747) -
Disposals - - - - - -
- write offs - (32) (908) (108) - (1,048)
- disposal on IFRS 36 (450 - - - - (45)
- sale of assets (349) (299) - - - (648)
At 31 December
2021, 36,118 749 9,492 5,668 1,051 53,078
Additions - - - - 2,566 2,566
Transfer 1,432 273 901 569 (3,175) -
Transfer from
intangible assets - - 194 - - 194
Disposals - - - - - -
- write offs - - (647) (97) - (744)
- Disposals on IFRS 36 (55) - - - - (55)
- sale of assets (143) - - - - (143)
At 31 December
2022, 37,352 1,022 9,940 6,140 442 54,896
Accumulated
impairment
At 1 January 2021, 13,791 594 5,489 3,338 - 23,212
Derecognition of the
period 726 136 980 368 - 2,210
- write offs - - (908) (107) - (1,015)
- Disposals on IFRS 36 (11) - - - - (11)
- sale of assets (184) (215) - - - (399)
At 31 December
2021, 14,322 515 5,561 3,599 & 23,997
Derecognition of the
period 732 109 1,086 444 - 2,371
- write offs - - (644) (97) - (741)
- Disposals on IFRS 36 (1) - - - - (1)
- sale of assets (23) - (1) - - (24)
At 31 December
2022, 15,030 624 6,002 3,946 - 25,602
Net book value 31
December 2022, 22,322 398 3,938 2,194 442 29,294
Net book value at 31
December 2021, 21,796 234 3,931 2,069 1,051 29,081
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18. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

18. b. Rights of use assets

Cost

At 1 January 2021
Additions

- write-offs

At 31 December 2021
- write-offs

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated depreciation

At January 1, 2021

Depreciation of period

Write-offs

At December 31 2021

Depreciation of period

Write-offs

At December 31, 2022,

Net book value at December 31,
2022

Net book value at December 31,
2021

7,516

1,326
(459)

8,383

(340)

8,043

2,223
1,465
(178)

3,510

1,643
(216)

4,937

3,106

4,873

During 2022 and 2021, property and equipment did not serve as collateral for the Bank's liabilities.
The total purchased value of tangible assets, which have been fully depreciated and are still in use,
amounted to KM 6,841 thousand as of December 31, 2022, while as of December 31, 2021, it

amounted to KM 6,404 thousand.

Management believes that the fair value of property and equipment is approximately equal to its

book value.
Leases
a) Lease as lessee

Right of use assets
Property

Equipment

Total

There has been no increase in property rights in 2022.

31,12,2022

31,12,2021

6,933
1,450

8,383

In the statement of financial position, the right-of-use assets are shown as a separate item within the
Tangible Assets, and the liabilities based on leases are stated as a separate item Lease Obligations.

131



NLB BANKA d.d., SARAJEVO
Notes to Financial Statements - December 31, 2022

(All amounts are given in thousand BAM unless otherwise stated)

18. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
18. b. Assets with the right of use (continued)

In Statement of profit and loss the following typse of expenses relate to leases:

Depreciation expense 2022 2021
Property 1,353 1,211
Equipment 290 254
Total 1,643 1,465
Other expenses 2022 2021
Interest expenses ) 51 72
Short term lease expenses (Note 13) 263 254
Expenses for leases of low value (Note 13) 200 187
Expenses on VAT based on leases treated under IFRS 16

(Note 13) 123 120
Total 637 633

A total of BAM 1,763 thousand was paid to suppliers from the lease basis in 2022. Out of these, the
amount of BAM 1,300 thousand refers to leases treated under IFRS 16.

b) Lease as leaseholder

In 2021, the Bank leased a smaller part of the main building in Tuzla, for the period of 5 years, with
the possibility of extending the lease. The amount of net income in 2022 is KM 208 thousand.

132



NLB BANKA d.d., SARAJEVO
Notes to Financial Statements - December 31, 2022

(All amounts are given in thousand BAM unless otherwise stated)
19. Intangible assets

The total cost of fully depreciated intangible assets still in use amounts to BAM 2.193 thousand as at
December 31, 2022 while as at December 31, 2021, it was BAM 1.758 thousand.

Licenses and Assets in
software progress TOTAL

Cost

At January 1, 2021 7,455 338 7,793
Additions 1,072 1,574 2,646
Write-offs (1,385) (736) (2,121)
At December 31, 2021 7,142 1,176 8,318
Additions - 436 436
Transfers 1,230 (1,230) -
Transfer to tangible assets - (194) (194)
Write offs (1) - (14)
At December 31, 2022 8,358 188 8,546
Accumulated depreciation

At January 1, 2021 5,995 - 5,995
Deprecation 596 - 596
Write-offs (1,313) - (1,313)
At December 31 2021 5,278 - 5,278
Deprecation 774 - 774
Write-offs (14) - (14)
At December 31, 2022 6,038 - 6,038
Net book value at December 31, 2022 2,320 188 2,508
Net book value at December 31, 2021 1,864 1,176 3,040

20, Long term assets available for sale

Long-term assets available for sale relate to acquired tangible assets in the amount of BAM 13,000
as of December 31, 2022 (2021: BAM 171,000), that relates to property taken over for unpaid
receivables.

All acquired tangible property is located on the territory of Bosnia and Herzegovina.

The bank plans to sell the acquired assets for unpaid receivables within a period of up to one year
from the date of acquisition. For assets that are not sold within one year, an evaluation of the value
is carried out and an appropriate impairment is recognized.

Valuations for three (3) properties were made in 2022, while for six (6) properties valuations were
made in the period from 2018 to 2021, and reassessments will be made in 2023. Annually, the value
is checked by internal appraisers, who have the title of expert in the architectural/construction
profession.

For the above-mentioned six (6) properties, no assessments have been made because the Bank, after
acquiring the property, conducts the procedure of registering the property in the land registry and
entering into possession, after which it can monitor and request an appraisal.
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21, Other assets and receivables

Other assets and receivables
Prepaid costs and
Small inventory

Less (impairment/value adjustment):
Other assets and receivables

22. Financial liabilities at fair value through PL

December December
31, 2022 31, 2021
1,214 1,128
22 292
1,236 1,150
(26) (17)
1,210 1,133

Financial liabilities at fair value through the balance of success refer to bonuses, which are paid in

the value of financial instruments (shares).

In June 2022, the Bank for the first time determined the number of instruments for 2021 and 2019
in the amount of 2,289 shares and on that basis booked KM 332 thousand of financial liabilities.

The value of financial liabilities on this basis is determined on a monthly basis.
On December 31, 2022, a decrease in the value of shares was determined in the amount of KM 45
thousand, and on this basis, the effect of the change in the value of financial assets at fair value
through the income statement was realized in the same amount and the effects were shown within

the position of other gains / losses from financial assets.

23. Financial liabilities at amortized cost

23. a. Banks' deposits and other financial institutions and other customers

Deposits a vista
Banks
Other financial institutions

Other deposits
Banks
Other financial institutions

Interest accrued and reserved

Total banks and other financial institutions

31.12.2022  31.12.2021
11,975 11,838
3,047 1,575

8,928 10,263
98,930 47,072
40,241 25,572
58,689 21,500

165 1

111,070 58,011

134



NLB BANKA d.d., SARAJEVO
Notes to Financial Statements - December 31, 2022

(All amounts are given in thousand BAM unless otherwise stated)

23. Financial liabilities at amortized cost (continued)

23. b. Customers' deposits

31.12.2022  31.12.2021
Deposits avista 889,070 747,490
Government 263,447 202,626
Public companies 40,840 31,419
Private companies 177,930 156,898
Non-profit organization 18,348 17,941
Retail 388,505 338,606
Other deposits 357,453 376,829
Government 4,787 . 3,587
Public companies 19,700 607
Private companies 59,707 51,417
Non-profit organization 2,738 2,762
Retail 270,521 318,456
Interest accrued and reserved 2,908 3,831
Total customer’s deposits 1,249,431 1,128,150

23. ¢ Borrowings

Liabilities for taken loans refer to liabilities based on long-term and subordinated loans from banks

and non-banking financial organizations.

December December
31, 2022 31, 2021
Loans

Nova Ljubljanska bank d.d.. Ljubljana 51,704 22,725
European Fund for South-East Europe (EFSE) 9,588 1,956

Subordinated loans
Nova Ljubljanska bank d.d.. Ljubljana 6,006 5,918
67,298 30,599

Interest rates on the entire portfolio of long-term credit lines from banks and non-banking financial
institutions for the year ended 31 December 2022, were in the range: fixed interest rates from 0.01%
to 2.45% per annum, while variable interest rates ranged from 6M EURIBOR +4.4% to 6M EURIBOR
+ 3.5%.

On the financial date, the Bank has an agreed unused long-term loan in the amount of EUR 5 million,
with the investment fund EFSE.

In 2019, the Bank concluded a subordinated debt with NLB d.d. Ljubljana in the amount of EUR 3
million, for a period of 10 years, with a variable interest rate of EUR 6M EURIBOR + 4.40% with a
one-time repayment.

With the consent of the Banking Agency of the Federation of BiH on 27 October 2021, Annex 1 of the
Subordinated Loan Agreement was concluded, by which the interest rate was changed from variable
in the amount of EUR6M EURIBOR + 4.40%, to fixed in the amount of 4.70%.
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23. Financial liabilities at amortized cost (continued)

23. ¢ Loans liabilities

The subordinated debt was used as an additional capital increase for regulatory purposes, with prior
approval from regulators. In the event of liquidation or bankruptey of the Bank, liabilities arising
from the subordinated debt are subordinated to the Bank's other liabilities.

Credit and subordinated liabilities under this basis are not additionally secured, nor subject to their
own warranty or warranty, mortgage, or any other type or form of collateral issued, and also no other
form of arrangement may be made that would increase the superiority of claims under this loan and
subordinate liabilities of the party to any of the following;:

The borrower or its subsidiaries; its parent undertaking or its subsidiaries, the parent financial
holding company or its subsidiaries, the mixed holding company or its subsidiaries, the mixed
financial holding company, or its subsidiaries; or any company that has close ties to the entities listed
above.

Early repayment of the loan is possible after the expiration of 5 years and 1 day after the date of
withdrawal of funds, but with the prior consent of the Banking Agency of the FBiH

23. d Other financial liabilities at amortized cost

31.12.2022  31.12.2021

Liabilities to individuals based on inactive accounts 6,481 7,837
Funds paid for overdue loan liabilities 9,826 7,177
Unallocated inflows 2,937 2,888
Liabilities to suppliers 1,326 1,024
Dividend liability 427 365
Commission liabilities - 1
Other financial liabilities 2,515 3,074

23,512 22,366

In accordance with the Procedure for Handling Inactive Accounts, the Bank may terminate the
contract with clients for whom it assesses that they do not intend to continue their business
relationship. After the expiration of the 30-day notice period, the Bank transfers funds from the
client's account to the account of other liabilities on the basis of funds on inactive accounts, if the
client has not activated the account or withdrawn funds. The Bank remains obliged to pay the
transferred funds at the client's request.

The management of assets in the name of and on behalf of clients

December December

31, 2022 31, 2021
Corporate 11,887 12,369
Retail 5,728 7,208
Total placements 17,615 19,577
Government of Tuzla Canton 12,232 13,434
Government of Sarajevo Canton 4,098 4,610
Other non-banking financial institutions 1,285 1,534
Total sources (liabilities) 17,615 19,578
Differences - 1

Funds managed by the Bank as an agent for and on behalf of third parties do not represent Bank
assets in the Bank’s balance sheet. The Bank manages certain assets on behalf of third parties by
investing the funds in long-term loans granted to companies and individuals. The Bank does not bear
the risk for these placements and charges a fee for its services.
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24. Provisions

Credit risk of commitments and guarantees (Note 28)
Litigation
Other provisions

a. Credit risk of commitments and guarantees

Opening balance as of January 1
Decrease/ increase for the year, net (Note 7)
Foreign exchange differences, net

b. Litigation

Opening balance as of January 1
Decrease/ increase for the year, net (Note 7)
Utilization

¢. Other provisions

Opening balance as of January 1

Increase / decrease for the year, net

Release via OUR/additional booking via OUR
Utilization

25. Other liabilities

Other liabilities to employees

Liabilities for taxes and membership fees
Prepaid fees

Other liabilities

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
3,139 1,859

42 696

2,093 2,009
5,274 4,564
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
1,859 2,012

1,280 (154)

- 1

3,139 1,859
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
696 601

(619) 104

(35) (9)

42 696
31.12,2022 31.12.2021
2,009 2,471

634 (409)

(461) 177

(89) (230)

2,093 2,009
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
513 641

123 204

108 134

44 91

788 1,070
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26. Share capital
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Number of shares 382,894 382,894
-Ordinary shares 382,712 382,712
-Preference shares 182 182

Preference shares were issued in 1991 bearing a dividend in an amount equal to the interest rate on
retail term deposits with a maturity of over 3 years, applicable from the date on which the
Shareholders' Assembly is held.

Ownership structure is presented within the Note 1.
Earnings per share

Bank shares are traded on the Stock Market - SASE. The Bank calculates and discloses earnings per
share in accordance with IAS 33. Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
period (amounts in absolute values). The Bank does not have instruments, such as convertible debt
or share options, for which there could be diluted earnings per share. For this reason, the Bank does
not calculate diluted earnings per share, meaning it is the same as the basic earnings per share.

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Net profit of the Bank after tax (in BAM) 21,430,216 21,170,679
Weighted number of shares 382,712 382,712
Basic earnings per Share (in BAM) 56.00 55.32

In November 2022, by the Decision of the Assembly of the Bank, no. I-100-55-2/22, dated 3.10.2022,
the payment of dividends from the accumulated (retained) earnings for 2021 was made.

For 2021, the amount of dividend for one ordinary share was BAM 38.71, and for 2020, BAM 23.29.

For 2020, a total of BAM 14,819 thousand of dividends was calculated, and for 2020 BAM 8,913
thousand of dividends.

27. Transactions with related parties

Parties are considered to be related when one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Transactions with the Bank management and members of their families have likewise been
considered transactions with related parties in 2022 and 2021.

Transactions with related parties are a part of everyday operations. These transactions include loans,
deposits, and borrowings, received and issued guarantees and other potential liabilities.

Memberships of members of the Supervisory Board and Bank Management in other affiliates and
non- affiliates are specified in Note 1.
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27. Transactions with related parties (continued)

The volume of transactions with the related party and the balance at the end of December 31, 2022,
are presented in the next table:

Off-balance
Business OR:izﬁ(;g‘slhip Liabilities | Receivables :{;:;;{;::lst Revenue | Expense
Related party activity / arty with )
P role of o Al NLB Banka d.d..
individuals | , 3" Sarajevo NLB Banka d.d.. Sarajevo Sarajevo in 2022
at 31.12.2022 toward related party | Toward related
party
NOVA SIGNIFICANT
UG G RO OETESTE 101,074 16,861 2,000 28 1.312
BANKA DD, ACTIVITIES | INTEREST IN g / » '
LJUBLJANA BANK
RELATED
NLB BANKAAD. | BANK BANK 8
BANJA LUKA ACTIVITIES (COMMON 57 795 - 310 25
OWNER)
RELATED
NLB BANKAAD. | BANK BANK
PODGORICA ACTIVITIES (COMMON 42 143 - -
OWNER)
RELATED
NLB BANKAAD. | BANK BANK
SKOPJE ACTIVITIES (COMMON 55 109 - - -
OWNER)
NLB RELATED
KOMERCIJALNA | BANK BANK
BANKA AD BANJA | ACTIVITIES | (COMMON 29 203 - - -
LUKA OWNER)
REAM D.O.0. COMMON
et REALESTATE | Jooons : : . R 10
SHAREHOLDE
REPUBLIC OF ‘lfv?fHA PERSON
SLOVENIA — OTHER
MINISTRY OF ACTIVITIES gIGNIFICANT : 32,695 - 240 392
TN ANCTE WNERSHIP
INTEREST IN
THE BANK
MEMBERS OF THE
MANAGEMENT AND
INDIVIDUALS MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 1.054 1,118 126 56 5
AND MEMBERS OF THEIR
FAMILIES
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27. Transactions with related parties (continued)

The volume of transactions with the related party and the balance at the end of December 31. 2021
are presented in the next table:

Off-balance
e aatees . Receivables
Business Relationship of Liabilities | Receivables ¢ l(.:(’;.tli.n.ge';t Revenue | Expense
activity / related party 1abilities
Related party role of with NLB Banka NLB Banka d.d..
individuals | d.d.. Sarajevo NLB Banka d.d.. Sarajevo at Sarajevo in 2021
31.12.2021 toward related party toward related
party
NOVA
SIGNIFICANT
LJUBLJANSKA [ EANK OWNERSHIP 54,597 10,686 15 273 1.04
BANKA DD. ACTIVITIES | [ bor IN BANK
LJUBLJANA
NLB BANKA AD. | BANK oo o5 o ) o5 )
BANJA LUKA ACTIVITIES | (yonpny
NLB BANKAAD. | BANK ?C%Lﬁ'{ngBAN 1S a 582 ) ) )
PODGORICA ACTIVITIES | (e
NLB BANKAAD, | BANK iR - 2,037 ) ) )
SKOPJE ACTIVITIES OWNER)
NLBBANKAAD | BANK GO ron - ) ) )
BEOGRAD ACTIVITIES | ionppy
KOMERCIJALNA | o0 RELATED BANK
BANKA AD ACTIVITIES | (COMMON - - . 4 .
BANJA LUKA OWNER)
PRVI FAKTOR ?%Rcm
DOO s\Sarajevo- SERVICE COMMON OWNER - - - 1 2
in liquidation ACTIVITIES
REAM D.0.0. REAL
PODGORICA ESTATE COMMON OWNER - - - - -
SHAREHOLDER OF
REPUBLIC OF A PERSON WITH
SLOVENIA — OTHER SIGNIFICANT ) of anl i o i
MINISTRY OF ACTIVITIES | OWNERSHIP 3 409
FINANCE INTEREST IN THE
BANK
MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT
AND MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
INDIVIDUALS AND MEMBERS OF THEIR 1.322 1,466 152 59 8
FAMILIES
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27. Transaction with related parties (continued)

Management remuneration

2022 2021

Short-term employee benefits
Net salaries 724 754
Taxes and contributions on net salaries 570 594
Other remunerations 142 189
Taxes and contributions on other income 106 143
1,542 1,680

Net salaries, taxes and contributions are slightly lower in 2022 compared to 2021, which is caused
by the five-year delay in the payment of the variable part for 2021.

Remunerations of Bank's Supervisory Board and Audit Committees' members

2022 2021

Fees paid to SB an AC members 34 20
Taxes and contributions 8 5
42 25

During 2022 the fee was paid to two members of the Supervisory Board of the Bank and to one
member of the Audit Committee of the Bank, who are not connected with the majority owner of the
Bank.
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28. Contingencies

The following table presents contractual amounts which refer to contingent and assumed liabilities

of the Bank:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Individual Collecti Individual  Collective Individual  Collective Total 2021
ass 1t 1t
Guarantees - 97,512 = 496 502 10 98,520 81,204
Letters of credit - 635 E - - B 635 955
Granted loans not 80,241
withdrawn ) 125,516 E: 1,880 - 34 127,430
- 223,663 - 2,376 502 44 226,585 162,400
Less: Value adjustment _ (1,859)
for potential losses - (,2833) (190) (85) (31 (3,139)
- 220,830 - 2,186 417 13 223,446 160,541
The table below shows the gross exposure of the Bank in the form of contingencies and commitments
to the internal rating system (internal classification) and to the level of credit risk (stage
classification) at the end of the year:
2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 2021
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective Total
Internal
classification
A - 100,072 - 65 s = 100,137 71,959
B - 110,591 - 192 - - 110,783 78,407
@ - 13,000 - 2,119 - - 15,119 11,986
Dand E = = = = 503 43 546 48
- 223,663
= 2,376 503 43 226,585 162,400
Change in gross carrying value and related provisions for potential losses in 2022 are presented
below:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Collective Collective Collecti Total
Individual assessment Individual assessment Individual ve
assessment assessment assessment assess
ment
Amount of exposure at 31
December 2021 - 155,545 - 6,807 ) 48 162,400
New exposure = 146,694 = 1,911 12 5 148,622
Exposures derecognized or - (75,780) - (6,606) - (35) (82,421)
matured (excluding write off))
Transfer to Stage 1 - (5,296) - 254 - 23 (5,019)
Transfer to Stage 2 . 2,488 = 7 491 1 2,987
Transfer to Stage 3 = L ® 3 " = 16
Changes due to modifications
not resulting in - = - « . “ -
derecognition
Write offs - - - B - B E
Foreign exchange adjustments - - - - - B -
Balance at 31 December. 223,663 2,376 503 43 226,585

2022

142



NLB BANKA d.d., SARAJEVO
Notes to Financial Statements - December 31, 2022

(All amounts are given in thousand BAM unless otherwise stated)
28. Contingencies (continued)

Amount of exposure at 31
December 2019

New exposure

Exposures derecognized or
matured (excluding write off))

Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Changes due to modifications
not resulting in
derecognition

Write offs
Foreign exchange adjustments

Balance at 31 December.
2021

ECL at December 31, 2021

New exposure

Exposures derecognized or
matured (excluding write off)

Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3

Balance at December 31,
2022

ECL at December 31, 2020

New exposure

Exposures derecognized or
matured (excluding write off)
Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3
Balance at December 31, 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective Total
- 148,146 = 7:549 = 84 155,779
= 86,069 = 4,290 = 3 90,362
. (75,195) - (4,683) - 47) (79,925)
- (4,535) - 716 - 15 (3,804)
- 1,046 - (1,069) - 13 (10)
- 14 - 4 - (20) @
- 155,545 = 6,807 - 48 162,400
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective TOta]
- 1,278 s 533 = 48 1,859
- 1,957 - 145 12 2 2,116
- (530) - (521) - 37 (1,088)
- 65 - 28 - 21 114
. 63 - 5 74 3 145
5 . - = @) 2
= 2,833 = 190 86 30 3,139
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective TOtal
- 1,421 - 507 - 84 2,012
- 691 - 392 - 3 1,086
- (590) - (268) = (47) (905)
- (265) - 45 - 15 (205)
- 21 - (143) = 13 (109)
- - - - - (20) (20)
1,278 533 48 1,859
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28. Contingencies (continued)

Litigation in progress

As of December 31, 2022, 56 legal proceedings are pending against the Bank for which legal risk is
assessed. The total value of these court proceedings as of December 31, 2022, amounts to BAM 11,958
thousand; CHF 5 thousand and $ 50.

During 2022, the Bank received 9 new lawsuits.

Between January 1, and December 31, 2022, 12 court proceedings were closed.

The Bank continually monitors legal risk and evaluates expected costs on the basis of legal risk, with

the formation of adequate provisions on this basis. The number of provisions is disclosed in Note
24b. . .
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29. Segment reporting

Reporting by bank segments is based on IFRS 8 Business Segments, which is based on a management
approach. Segment reporting represents the results of business segments, prepared on the basis of
internal reports, that the Management Board uses to assess the performance of segments and used
as a source for decision-making. Business segments of the Bank are organizational units that
communicate directly on the market with clients and contract and / or realize the Bank's services and
thus generate revenues for the Bank. These are: Sector with business with economy with business
centres Tuzla, Sarajevo, and Mostar (Corporate and SME), Sector for retail business with branches
(Micro and Citizens), Sector for asset management (Financial markets) and Sector for collection and
management of non-quality assets (Collection). The Other segment includes categories that are not
allocated to any business segment, such as: overheads, service costs, other revenues and expenses.

Statement of financial position per segments as of December 31, 2022:

Interest income

Interest expense

Net income interest

Net fee and provision income
Other non-interest income
Other operating income

Total expenses

Gains / (Loss) before impairment and
provision

Losses from impairment (net)
GAIN/ (LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Loans and receivables

gross client loans

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

(;(:lf({’g;:;:e ll:l(l);:zi)a!tlil:)‘lil F:::_ll:::l Collection  Other Bank
10,765 SOTE 3,038 813 48 45107
(1,121) (2,061) (3,702) () (45) (6,931)
9,644 28,382 (664) 811 3 38176

3,566 19,972 (96) - 20 23483
54 314 656 S0 563 7:680
13,264 48,668 (104) 6,925 586 69,339
(1,710) (15,289) (549) (215)  (19.16)  (37879)
11,554 33.379 (653) 5719 (18530) 31,460
(2,831) (5,522) (257) o (8)  (7.476)
8,723 27,857 (910) 0902 _(18,588) 23,084
416,425 soalevs 141,022 2,876 2,704 1,157,700
422,898 603,077 : 2715 (459) 1,053,531
472,304 856,200 113,188 929 13,039 4 455,660
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29. Segment reporting (continued)

Statement of financial position per segments as of December 31, 2021:

Interest income

Interest expense

Net income interest

Net fee and provision income
Other non-interest income
Other operating income

Total expenses

Gains / Loss before impairment and
provision

Losses from impairment (net)
GAIN/ (LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Loans and receivables

gross client loans

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

(;(:lr([l)(s)ﬁ:?‘e glol::;)a:il(l)(rll F::::;;:z:l Collection Other Bank
9,710 28,152 2,264 2 (34) 40,953
(782) (2,691) (2,728) @) 60)  (6,264)
8,928 25,461 (464) 858 (94) 34,689
2,361 17,303 (131) i 1 19,593

(21) 217 899 ) 357 6,415
11,268 42,981 304 5,870 274 60,697
(1,790) e (548) (1244)  (16.924)  (34,613)
9:478 28,874 (244) 20 (16,650) 26,084

g = (4,568) 37 (758) 201 (3,066)
11,410 24,306 (207) 3,868 (16,359) 23,018
379,057 499,198 117,297 2,267 2,497 1,000,316
383,508 504,556 g CaR (508) 918,986
316,790 848,153 60,232 3,264 17,225 1,245,664

30. Events after the date of reporting

There were no significant events between the balance sheet date and the date of approval of these
financial statements that require disclosure.

31. 31. Approval of the financial statements

The finaneial statements were approved by the Bank Man

athorjsed for issue on 19

April 2043. ”
s / ) V/"
Jure Peffhan DenjsHasanié¢ \ﬂ:gﬂigié
Member of the Board mber of the Board Pregident of the Board
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